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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Hector H. Balderas,

New Mexico State Auditor
Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
City of Portales

Portales, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary comparisons for
the general fund and the major special revenue funds, and of the City of Portales (the "City"), as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. We also have audited the financial statements of each of the City's
nonmajor governmental funds and the budgetary comparisons for the major enterprise funds and all
nonmajor funds presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual
fund financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons
for the general fund and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of each nonmajor governmental fund of the City as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes
in financial position thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the major enterprise funds and
all nonmajor governmental funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
17, 2010, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information
and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements, and
the combining and individual fund financial statements. The additional schedules listed as "other
supplemental information" in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

dle  TE3e P

March 17, 2010



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2009

The following is an overview of the financial condition of the City of Portales, New Mexico (the “City”), for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This narrative highlights the major aspects of the City’s financial status
for this period, and should be considered in conjunction with the information presented in other sections of
this audit report.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

Government-wide Statements

Government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the government’s
assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of
activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories:

° Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as
police, fire and general administration. Gross receipts and property taxes finance most of
these activities.

o Business type activities — The City charges fees to customers to help cover the cost of
certain services it provides. The City’s water, sewer, solid waste and airport are included
here.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds-not
the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending for particular purposes.

The City has three types of funds:

° Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds,
which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash
flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in
the near future to finance the City’s programs.

o Proprietary funds — Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds.



o Fiduciary funds — The City is responsible for other assets that, because of a trust
arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements
and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net assets and total liabilities may serve over time as useful indicators of a government’s financial condition.
Net assets for the City as a whole increased by $2,880,132 in the year ended June 30, 2009. This reflects an
ongoing investment in buildings, infrastructure, equipment and vehicles to assist the City in providing
services to the community. Total liabilities increased by $461,962 during this time period; indicating that
the City was able to add net assets without a large increase in related liabilities. The net assets of the City of
Portales exceeded liabilities by $19,153,937 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The largest portion,
$18,280,854, reflects the City’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery and equipment);
less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City uses these assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to
repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets of $5,331,360 may be used to meet the City’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report
positive balances in all categories of net assets.

A condensed statement of net assets is as follows:

CITY OF PORTALES
Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assets 5,295,009 §$ 4,762,673 $ 2,118,008 $ 2,566,909 $ 7,413,017 $ 7,329,582
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 134,271 340,399 2,964,704 2,644,496 3,098,975 2,984,895
Bond issue costs, net - - 28,357 42,535 28,357 42,535
Bond reissue costs, net - - 44247 66,371 44247 66,371
Capital assets, net 9,617,665 7,516,817 14,077.092 12,997,059 23,694,757 20,513,876
Total assets 15,046,945 $§ 12619889 $ 19232408 § 18317370 § 34279353 $ 30,937259
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities 1,022,169 § 772,047 § 832911 $ 805442 § 1,905,080 $ 1,577,489
Customer deposits - - 217,010 206,582 217,010 206,582
Accrued compensated absences 274.569 288,915 41.305 46,786 315.874 335,701
Landfill closure - - 706,380 706,380 706,380 706,380
Long term debt due after one year 863,781 1,193,534 3,554,583 3,081,060 4,418 364 4,274,594
Total liabilities 2,160,519 2,254,496 5,402,189 4,846,250 7,562,708 7,100,746
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 8,425,310 5,988,624 9,855,544 9,282,236 18.280.854 15,270,860
Restricted for:
Debt service 23,939 234,739 532,430 487.296 556,369 722,035
Capital projects 110,332 105,660 783,548 597,775 893,880 703,435
Water conservation - - 947,802 1,300,089 947,802 1,300,089
Landfill closure - - 706,380 706,380 706,380 706,380
Unrestricted 4,326,845 4,036,370 1,004,515 1,097,344 5,331,360 5,133,714
Total net assets 12,886,426 10,365,393 13,830,219 13,471,120 26,716,645 23,836,513
Total liabilities and net assets 15,046,945 $ 12,619,889 § 19232408 $ 18317370 § 34,279,353 § 30,937,259




Governmental activities were able to increase total assets by $2,427,056 from June 30, 2008 to June 30,
2009. The largest part of this increase was for net capital assets which increased by $2,100,848. The City
had several large projects in progress during the fiscal year, including renovation of the courthouse square,
the Yam Movie Palace remodel and swimming pool renovations. Governmental activities also added
$541,284 worth of vehicles and equipment in the current fiscal year.

Governmental liabilities decreased by $93,977 for the year ended June 30, 2009. Governmental activities
paid down current debt and reduced accrued compensated absence liability. No new debt was incurred by
governmental funds during the fiscal year.

Business type activities also increased total assets during the fiscal year. Total assets increased by
$915,038, increasing from $18,317,370 to $19,232,408. The asset categories with the largest increase were
restricted assets (increase of $320,208) and net capital assets (increase of $1,080,033.) Business type
activity capital assets include well, water systems, and airport improvements. Current assets decreased from
$2,566,909 to $2,118,008, a reduction of $448,901.

Total liabilities increased for the business type activities during the fiscal year. Customer deposits increase
by $10,428 due to an increase in water and sewer customers within the City limits. Long term liabilities
increased due to a loan taken out to install water valves and a water loop line to reduce the chance of
widespread water outages when water lines break. The City Council made installation of the valves and
loop line a priority after several major water breaks occurred.

A condensed comparative statement of activities is as follows:

CITY OF PORTALES
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
REVENUES:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 941,240 § 960,694 $ 5,190,648 § 5,266,662 $ 6,131,888 § 6,227,356
Operating grants and contributions 1,369,376 758,487 - - 1,369,376 758,487
Capital grants and contributions 1,888,765 1,410,598 285,956 178,710 2,174,721 1,589,308
General revenues:
Gross receipts taxes 5,265,357 5,550,021 119,760 126,145 5,385,117 5,676,166
Other taxes 934,311 916,694 - - 934311 916,694
Water conservation fees - - 278,701 334,198 278,701 334,198
Investments 9,821 76,561 7,202 121,586 17,023 198,147
Rentals, reimbursements & other 168,474 166,882 - (1,023) 168,474 165,859
Transfers, net 1,307,048 607.683 (1,307,048) (607,683) - -
Total revenues $ 11,884392 § 10447620 §$ 4,575219 §$ 5418595 § 16459.611 $ 15,866,215
Expenses:
General government $ 9,296,876 % 8,920,753 $ - % - $ 9296876 % 8,920,753
Water & sewer - - 2,589,408 2,650,657 2,589,408 2,650,657
Solid waste E - 1,115,189 1,072,281 1,115,189 1,072,281
Airport - - 353,901 392,824 353,901 392,824
Interest expense 66.483 79,910 157,622 197,705 224,105 277,615
Total expenses 9,363,359 9,000,663 4,216,120 4,313,467 13,579,479 13,314,130
Change in net assets: 2,521,033 1,446,957 359,099 1,105,128 2,880,132 2,552,085
Net assets, beginning of the year 10,365,393 9,249,755 13,471,120 12,443,878 23,836,513 21,693,633
Prior period adjustment - (331,319) - (77.886) - (409,205)
Net assets, end of year $ 12886426 $ 10365393 $ 13830219 $ 13471,120 $ 26,716,645 § 23,836,513




COMPARISON OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY FUNCTION

Revenues (excluding net transfers) for governmental activities increased by by 7.5% during the 2009 fiscal
year. The reason for this increase was a large increase in operating and capital grants, which increased by
50% for the year ended June 30, 2009. The City received grants for street repair, building renovations and
other general projects. Gross receipt tax collections were down by 5% for fiscal year, dropping from
$5,550,021 to $5,265,357. This drop in gross receipts tax was due to the recession, with the largest drop in
collections occurring in the last quarter of the year. Investment income was down significantly for
governmental activities, dropping from $76,561 to $9,821. Interest rates were at historic lows during this
time period, which caused an 87% drop in investment income.

Governmental activities expenses increased by 4% from $9,000,633 to $9,363,359 during the fiscal year.
The majority of this increase was due to salaries, which increase at an average rate of 3% per year and
benefits, including health insurance. There were also increases in workers compensation insurance expenses
and general liability insurance.

Revenues for business-type activities (excluding net transfers) decreased by 2.4% during the 2009 fiscal
year. Charges for services revenue dropped by 1.5%. This is due to the closure of the local ethanol plant
which was a major consumer of water and sewer services. Gross receipts collections for business-type
activities decreased by 5%, reflecting the same percentage decrease experienced by the governmental
activities. Investment income for business-type activities decreased by 94%, once again due to the historic
low interest rates during this time frame.

Expenses for Water and Sewer decreased by 2% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The decreases
can be accounted for by salary savings due to employee turnover. Expenses in Solid Waste increased by
4%. As discussed above, the majority of the increase is accounted for by annual salary increases of 3% and
increases in health and liability insurances. Expenses for the Airport decreased by 10% during the fiscal
year. This was due to a reduction in maintenance costs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS
Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Portales’ financing
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. At the end of the 2009 fiscal year, the City’s
governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $4,762,833. The general fund balance of
$2,629,649 represents fifty-five percent of the total governmental fund balances. The general fund balance
decreased by $179,982 in 2009. This was due to a decrease in total assets of $115,168 and an increase of
liabilities of $64,814. The largest decrease in total assets was from the decrease in accounts receivable and
taxes receivable, which together accounted for $86,480 of the decrease in total assets.

General fund revenues totaled $6,434,236 for the fiscal year, while expenditures were $7,323,195.
Expenditures exceeded revenues by $888,959 prior to transfers in and out of the general fund. During the
year, the general fund received $1,355,000 from other City funds, while it transferred $646,023. The net
transfer in of $708,977 decreased the excess expenditures over revenues resulting in a net decrease of fund
balance of $179,982. General fund revenues were adversely affected by the recession, which was a partial
cause of the reduction in fund balance.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. An analysis of the major proprietary funds is as follows:



Proprietary funds increased total assets from $18,317,370 in 2008 to $19,232,408 in 2009. This was a 5%
increase. The water fund made up the largest portion of this with total assets of $16,267,201, which is 85%
of total proprietary assets. Water fund increased total assets by $971,103, which is a 6% increase. Solid
waste increased total assets by 12%, or $100,007. Airport is the only proprietary fund which had a decrease
in total assets. Airport assets decreased 7% to $1,996,462. The decrease in Airport assets was due to
depreciation charges.

Proprietary fund liabilities increased by $555,939 during 2009. This was an 11% increase. Water liabilities
increased 13%, solid waste liabilities increased 5% and airport liabilities increased 3%. Increased accounts
payable accruals made up the largest part of the increase for each fund.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The discussion that follows presents financial data based upon the budgetary basis of accounting. Please
refer to the notes of the financial statements for an explanation of the differences of accounting regarding the
budget. During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget
amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to
prepare the original budget once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recoghize new
funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations
that become necessary to maintain services.

During the 2009 fiscal year, the general fund revenue budget was increased by $135,263. As discussed
above, budget adjustments are made for various reasons. At the end of the fiscal year gross receipts taxes
were under budget by $412,540. This was caused by a reduction on gross receipts collections in the last
quarter of the fiscal year due to the recession. Charges for Services was also under budget by $151,363.
The largest item in this category is ambulance receivables, which were reduced due to the bad economy.

Expenditures were budgeted to exceed revenues by $1,010,210 before net transfers. All expenditure
categories were under budget by $767,391. Categories which were significantly under budget were
legislative, police, streets and parks. It is the City’s policy to budget based upon expected expenditures, but
City employees are encouraged to only spend what is needed to accomplish the task at hand, which accounts
for the expenditure savings.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2009 was $23,694,757 (net of accumulated
depreciation.) This investment in capital assets includes land, improvements, buildings, utility systems,
machinery and equipment. Governmental capital assets, net, increased by $2,100,848. The largest increase
was in construction in progress, which had a net increase of $1,294,244. Business-type activities saw an
increase of $1,080,033. Machinery and equipment was the category in business-type activities with the
largest increase. Machinery and equipment net value increased by $1,303,254.

A capital asset summary follows below:

CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Land b 698,102 $ 698,102 § 4593347 § 4,593,347 § 5291449 $ 5,291,449
Construction in progress 1,617,115 322871 216,463 33,520 1,833,578 356,391
Buildings 3,137,058 2,965,977 281,141 289,920 3,418,199 3,255,897
Improvements 2,557,673 1,972,463 6,279,670 6,807,853 8,837,343 8,780,316
Machinery and equipment 522314 570,305 2,210,809 907,555 2,733,123 1,477,860
Fumiture and fixtures 46,449 65.615 955 1,448 47,404 67,063
Vehicles 1,038,954 921,484 494,707 363,416 1,533,661 1,284,900
Totals $ 9,617,665 §$ 7,516,817 $§ 14,077,092 $§ 12,997,059 $ 23,604,757 $ 20,513,876




Long-term Debt:

At the end of the 2009 fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding of $5,413,903, which consists of
revenue bonds, notes payable and capital leases. The City entered into one new debt service agreement for
$1,140,268 to install water valves and a loop water line to improve water service for the citizens of the
community. The debt is scheduled to be paid in full in 2029. Governmental activity long term debt
outstanding as of June 30, 2009 was $1,192,355 and business-type long term debt outstanding was
$4,221,548. During the fiscal year governmental funds reduced long term debt by $335,838 and business-
type funds increased long term debt by $506,725.

LONG TERM DEBT
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes payable $ 742,355 % 858,193 $ 3,116,548 § 2,214,823 % 3,858,903 §$ 3,073,016
Bonds payable 450,000 670,000 1,070,000 1,395,000 1,520,000 2,065,000
Land capital lease - - 35,000 105,000 35,000 105,000
Landfill post closure - - 706,380 706.380 706,380 706,380
Compensated absences 306,833 322,865 47,752 53,989 354.585 376,854
Totals $ 1,499,188 $ 1,851,058 $ 4,975,680 $ 4475192 § 6,474,868 % 6,326,250

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS, OR CONDITIONS

The country entered into a recession during the 2009 fiscal year. This has affected gross receipts collections
for the City. Gross receipts collection estimates were reduced by 13% for the 2010 fiscal year. This has
resulted in less funds being available for City expenditures. Council and City staff have reviewed basic
services and cut expenses wherever feasible. Capital expenditures have been postponed until gross receipts
collections increase, and positions have been consolidated to save on salaries as employees leave through
normal attrition. Management continues to monitor the financial situation, but at this time it is believed that
no additional cuts will be necessary.

The prospect of capital project funding from the State is limited, at this time, but the City is actively
pursuing federal stimulus grants. Currently, the City has received federal awards for police equipment,
senior vans and street projects. Management is also exploring other grant and private award avenues to
assist in equipment replacement and infrastructure repair and renewal.

The local population is growing. Cannon Air Force Base is in the process of completing its realignment
process and more personnel are being stationed at the base. Additionally, the local university, Eastern New
Mexico University, is experiencing record enrollment which increases the City’s population. Management
believes that the population increase will result in increased gross receipt tax collections and increased
utility revenue. These increases will translate into more funds available for City services in the future. This
anticipated growth combined with strong economic development initiatives translates into a bright future for
the City of Portales.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s
accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
repott or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Finance Director, 100 W. First
Street, Portales, NM 88130.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,107,171 $ 922,833 $ 4,030,004
Investments 722,331 665,716 1,388,047
Receivables:
Accounts 104,707 403,559 508,266
Taxes 966.062 18,489 984,551
Intergovernmental 393,001 63,021 456,022
Interest 21 116 137
Returned checks 1,281 1,942 3,223
Inventory - 42,767 42.767
Internal balances 435 (435) =
Total current assets 5,295,009 2,118,008 7,413,017
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 134,271 2,530,329 2,664,600
Investments - 434,375 434375
Bond issue costs, net - 28,357 28,357
Bond reissue costs, net - 44247 44247
Capital assets not being depreciated 2,315,217 4,809,810 7,125,027
Capital assets being depreciated, net 7,302,448 9,267,282 16,569,730
Total noncurrent assets 9,751,936 17,114,400 26,866,336
Total assets $ 15,046,945 $ 19,232,408 $ 34,279,353
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable $ 385,923 $ 138,408 $ 524,331
Accrued interest 7,219 18,459 25,678
Accrued salaries 247,730 33,933 281,663
Accrued GGRT taxes 20,459 - 20,459
Unapplied credits - 18,699 18,699
Current portion of compensated absences 32,264 6,447 38,711
Current portion of long term debt 328,574 666,965 995,539
Total current liabilitics 1,022,169 882911 1,905,080
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Customer deposits - 217,010 217,010
Accrued compensated absences 274.569 41,305 315,874
Landfill closure - 706,380 706,380
Long term debt due after one year 863,781 3,554,583 4,418,364
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,138,350 4,519,278 5,657,628
Total liabilities 2,160,519 5,402,189 7,562,708
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,425,310 9,855,544 18,280,854
Restricted for:
Debt service 23,939 532,430 556,369
Capital projects 110.332 783,548 893,880
Water conservation - 947,802 947,802
Landfill closure - 706,380 706,380
Unrestricted 4,326,845 1,004,515 5,331,360
Total net assets 12,886,426 13,830,219 26,716,645
Total liabilities and net assets $ 15,046,945 $ 19,232,408 $ 34,279,353

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009
Capital Municipal Other Total
General Repair and Street Nonmajor  Governmental
Fund Replacement Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,145,578 § 42,608 §$ 42,645 $ 1,876,340 $ 3,107,171
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - - 134,271 134,271
Investments 634,480 - - 87,851 722,331
Receivables:
Accounts 104,707 - - - 104,707
Taxes 817,518 - 39,561 108,983 966,062
Intergovernmental 4,629 373,045 - 15,327 393,001
Interest - - - 21 21
Returned checks 1,281 - - - 1,281
Due from other funds 443240 - - 157,915 601,155
Total assets § 3,151,433 § 415,653 § 82,206 $ 2,380,708 § 6,030,000
LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 98,059 § 92,745 § 14,534 § 180,585 § 385,923
Accrued interest - - - 7,219 7,219
Accrued salaries 240,635 - - 7,095 247,730
Accrued GGRT Bonds 20,459 - - - 20,459
Deferred revenue 5,116 - - - 5,116
Due to other funds 157,515 168,605 249,818 24,782 600,720
Total liabilities 521,784 261,350 264,352 219,681 1,267,167
Fund balances:
Unreserved
Undesignated, reported in:
General fund 2,629,649 - - - 2,629,649
Special revenue fund - - (182,146) 1,701,300 1,519,154
Capital projects fund - 154,303 - 119,298 273,601
Debt service fund - - - 340,429 340,429
Total fund balances 2,629,649 154,303 (182,146) 2,161,027 4,762,833

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,151,433 § 415653 § 82,206 $ 2,380,708 $ 6,030,000

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Amounts reported for government activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 4,762,833

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 9,617,665

Certain revenues do not meet the measurable and available criteria for revenue recognition in
governmental funds, accordingly, these revenues are deferred in the funds. 5,116

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. This includes compensated absences of $306,833 and note obligations

of $1,192,355. (1,499.188)
Net assets - statement of net assets $ 12,886,426
_

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN THE FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 65,632

The changes in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays of
$2,822,474 exceeded depreciation expense of $771,174 in the current period. 2,051,300

Disposition of capital assets. 47,115

Property taxes collected during the fiscal year, made available to pay for the current
period's expenditures, reported as deferred revenue in the funds in the previous fiscal
year. 5,116

Issuance of note obligations is revenue in the governmental funds but increases the liability
in the statement of net assets. Repayment of bond and note principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets. This is the
amount by which note obligation issuance of $0 was exceeded by principal repayments of
$335,838. 335,838

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is
presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when
financial resources are available. This is the amount of compensated absences liability

and landfill closure liability. 16,032
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 2,521,033
_—————————

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Original Final Actual Positive (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Gross receipts $ 5,124,401 § 5,124,401 $ 4,711,861 $ (412,540)
Franchise 300,000 300.000 332.881 32.881
Property 280,000 280,000 267,963 (12,037)
Intergovernmental 60.373 194,636 132,938 (61,698)
Charges for services 760,000 760,000 608,637 (151,363)
Licenses, fees and permits 44,100 44100 138.627 94,527
Fines 109,500 109,500 103,633 (5,867)
Rentals 22324 22,324 34.780 12,456
Grants and contributions 500 2.247 27,169 24,922
Interest 55.000 55.000 - (55,000)
Other 161.100 160,353 75.747 (84,606)
Total revenues 6,917,298 7,052,561 6.434,236 (618,325)
Expenditures:
Current:
Legislative 483.219 320,299 222,163 98.136
Community development/planning 222,573 214,013 175,112 38,901
Administration 514.759 508.210 462,621 45.589
Finance 541,539 608,771 600,772 7,999
Municipal court 160.579 160.304 144.272 16.032
Library 300,393 299,706 293,650 6,056
General services 184.565 183.797 175.339 8.458
Fire and ambulance 1,691,659 1,663,628 1,639,795 23,833
Emergency management - 70.899 - 70,899
Police 2,254,906 2,247,786 2,087,588 160,198
Senior citizens 131,471 130.448 103.501 26.947
Technology/IT 156,378 167,378 156,743 10,635
Streets 585.299 575,299 470.141 105.158
Parks 702,118 713,952 611,663 102,289
Recreation 192,551 192,351 146,704 45,647
Public works 6,242 5,930 5,316 614
Total expenditures 8.128,251 8.062,771 7.295,380 767,391
Deficit of revenues over expenditures (1,210,953) (1,010,210) (861,144) 149.066
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 1.355,000 1,355,000 1.355.000 -
Operating transfers out (461,781) (662,524) (646,023) 16,501
Total other financing sources (uses) 893.219 692,476 708,977 16,501
Net changes in fund balances (317,734) (317,734) (152,167) 165,567
Fund balance - beginning of year 2.809.631 2.809.631 2.809.631 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 2.491.897 $ 2,491,897 $ 2,657,464 § 165.567
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ (152,167)
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (27,815)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ (179.982)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CAPITAL REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Federal $ 477,750 § 477,750 § 284,172 § (193,578)
State 2,062,841 2,062,841 1,194,200 (868,641)
Other 127,000 215,946 89,446 (126,500)
Total revenues 2,667,591 2,756,537 1,567,818 (1,188,719)
Expenditures:
Current:
Non capital purchases - - - -
Capital outlay 2,874,872 3,129,715 1,567,067 1,562,648
Total expenditures 2,874,872 3,129,715 1,567,067 1,562,648
Deficit of revenues over expenditures (207,281) (373,178) 751 373,929
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 207,281 373,178 373,178 -
Net changes in fund balances - - 373,929 373,929
Fund balance - beginning of year (155,838) (155,838) (155,838) -
Fund balance - end of year $ (155,838) $ (155,838) § 218,091 § 373,929
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 373,929
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (63,788)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ 310,141

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

MUNICIPAL STREET SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State allocations
Taxes:
Gasoline taxes

Total revenue
Expenditures:
Current:
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Deficit of revenues over expenditures
Other financial uses
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis

Net revenue accruals
Net expenditure accruals

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 968,302 § 1,018,302 § 794,195 § (224,107)
- - 199,919 199,919
968,302 1,018,302 994,114 (24,188)
5,000 5,000 90,967 (85,967)
80,000 80,000 187,294 (107,294)
1,005,124 1,089,970 848,005 241,965
1,090,124 1,174,970 1,126,266 48,704
(121,822) (156,668) (132,152) (24,516)
55,000 89,846 89,846 -
(66,822) (66,822) (42,306) 24,516
(138,223) (138,223) (138,223) -
h (205,045) $ (205,045) $ (180,529) $ 24,516
$ (42,306)
(1,617)
$ (43,923)




PROPRIETARY FUNDS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009
Water and Solid Airport Total Proprietary
Sewer Fund Waste Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash cquivalents $ 669,981 $ 252,702 $ 150 $ 922,833
Investments 470,491 195,225 - 665.716
Receivables:
Accounts 308.311 95,248 - 403,559
Taxes - 18,489 - 18,489
Interest 116 - - 116
Intergovemmental 63,021 - - 63,021
Returned checks 1,837 105 - 1,942
Inventory - - 42,767 42,767
Due from (to) other funds (266) (169) - (435)
Total current assets 1,513,491 561,600 42917 2,118,008
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,530,329 - - 2,530,329
Investment 434,375 - - 434375
Bond issue costs, net 28,357 - - 28.357
Bond reissue costs, net 44,247 - - 44247
Capital assets, net 11,716,402 407,145 1,953,545 14,077,092
Total noncurrent assets 14,753,710 407,145 1,953,545 17,114,400
Total assets by 16,267,201 968,745 % 1996462 3 19,232,408
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 92,799 43,471 2,138 138,408
Accrued interest 18,459 - - 18,459
Accrued salaries 21,664 10,769 1,500 33,933
Unapplied credits 2,209 16,490 - 18,699
Current portion of compensated absences 4,347 1,466 634 6,447
Current portion of long term debt 665.700 819 446 666.965
Total current liabilities 805,178 73.015 4718 882.911
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Customer deposits 217,010 - - 217.010
Accrued compensated absences 27,848 9,392 4,065 41.305
Landfill closure - 706,380 - 706,380
Long term debt due after one year 3,550,671 2,532 1,380 3,554,583
Total non-current liabilities 3,795,529 718,304 5,445 4,519,278
Total liabilities 4,600,707 791,319 10,163 5,402,189
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 7,500,031 403,794 1,951,719 9,855,544
Restricted for:
Debt service 532,430 - - 532,430
Capital projects 783,548 - - 783,548
Water conservation 947,802 - - 947,802
Landfill closure - 706,380 - 706,380
Unrestricted 1,902,683 (932,748) 34,580 1,004,515
Total net assets 11,666,494 177,426 1,986,299 13,830,219
Total liabilities and net assets $ 16,267,201 968,745 § 1,996,462 % 19,232,408

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Fuel sales
Late charges
Rentals
Tapping and reconnect fees
Other and miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Maintenance

Contracted and purchased services

Supplies

Noncapital purchases
Operating costs
Depreciation
Amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income

Environmental gross receipts tax
‘Water conservation fees

Grant proceeds

Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

Water and Solid Airport Total Proprietary
Sewer Fund Waste Fund Fund Funds

$ 3,762,410 $ 1,120,248 $ - $ 4,882,658
- - 102,271 102,271
87,797 - 952 88,749

2,500 - 34,533 37,033

78,283 - - 78,283

988 - 666 1,654

3,931,978 1,120,248 138422 5,190,648
481,503 262,813 31,465 775,781
198,638 112,298 7,599 318,535
627,784 97,508 14,693 739,985
87,758 509,413 510 597,681

52,739 64,892 8,659 126,290

6,271 3,004 1,486 10,761

500,863 6,629 125,251 632,743
597,550 58,632 164,238 820,420
36,302 - - 36,302
2,589,408 1,115,189 353,901 4,058,498
1,342,570 5,059 (215,479) 1,132,150
4,559 2,643 - 7,202

- 119,760 - 119,760
278,701 - - 278,701
262,200 12,617 11,139 285,956
(157,622) - - (157,622)
387.838 135,020 11,139 533,997
1,730,408 140,079 (204,340) 1,666,147
581,751 - 47,952 629,703
(1,861,751) (75,000) - (1,936,751)
(1,280,000) (75,000) 47,952 (1,307,048)
450.408 65,079 (156,388) 359,099
11,216,086 112,347 2,142,687 13,471,120

$ 11,666,494 § 177426  $ 1,986,299 § 13,830,219

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers
Payments to suppliers and contractors
Payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Environmental gross receipts tax
Due to / from other funds

Water conservation fees

Grant proceeds

Net transfers in (out)

Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital and related financing

activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Grant proceeds

Interest expense

Purchase of capital assets
Principal payments on debt

Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income

Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation to cash and cash equivalents balances at year end:

Unrestricted cash
Restricted cash

Total cash and cash equivalents

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH FINANCING AND INVESTING TRANSACTIONS:

Issuance of long-term note payable for additions to water
improvement system

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH:

Provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Returned checks
Inventory
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Unapplied credits
Compensated absences
Customer deposits

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Water and Solid Waste Airport
Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 4,006,383 $ 1,121,018 §$ 138422 § 5,265,823
(1,218,918) (649,432) (149,933) (2,018,283)
(650,002) (377,245) (45,067) (1,072,314)
2,137,463 94,341 (56,578) 2,175,226
- 119,760 - 119,760
(75.251) (6,268) (15.331) (96,850)
278,701 - - 278,701
- - 11,139 11,139
(1,280,000) (75.000) 47,952 (1,307,048)
(1,076,550) 38,492 43,760 (994,298)
262,200 12,617 13,195 288,012
(160,304) - - (160,304)
(685,871) (74,314) - (760,185)
(632,474) (693) (377) (633,544)
(1,216,449) (62,390) 12.818 (1,266,021)
27,353 7418 - 34,771
27,353 7,418 - 34,771
(128,183) 77,861 - (50,322)
3,328,493 174,841 150 3,503,484
$ 3,200,310 § 252,702 % 150 $ 3,453,162
$ 669,981 % 252,702 % 150 § 922,833
2,530,329 - - 2,530,329
$ 3,200,310 $ 252,702 § 150 § 3,453,162
h) 1,140,268 $ - - $ 1,140,268
$ 1,342,570 $ 5,059 § (215479) §$ 1,132,150
597,550 58,632 164.238 820,420
36,302 - - 36.302
63,811 (4,971) - 58,840
(463) - - (463)
- - (6.030) (6,030)
92,799 32,014 666 125,479
830 (2,558) (305) (2,033)
629 5,741 - 6,370
(6,993) 424 332 (6,237)
10,428 - - 10.428
h 2,137,463 § 94.341 (56,578) $ 2,175,226
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Portales (the "City") is a political subdivision of the state of New Mexico, and
operates under the Mayor-Council form of government. The City provides the following
authorized services: public safety (police and fire), streets, water, sanitation, health and welfare,
culture and recreation, public improvements, and general administrative services.

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP"). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is responsible
for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements
and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued through November 30, 1989, when
applicable, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the City has
the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type funds, the
City has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and
used by the City are discussed below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City Council (the "Council") is elected by the public and it has the authority to make
decisions, appoint administrators and managers, and significantly influence operations. It
also has the primary accountability for fiscal matters. Therefore, the City is a financial
reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) in
its Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity.” There are no component units
included within the reporting entity as defined by Statement No. 14.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements——The basic financial statements
include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or activity. Program revenues include 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, ot directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or activity and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function or activity and 3)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a
particular function or activity.
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Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead
as general revenues. The net cost (by function of governmental-type activity) is normally
covered by general revenues (property, sales, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
interest income, etc.). The City does not allocate indirect costs.

Separate fund based financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
proprietary funds. Major individual government funds and major individual proprietary
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The nonmajor
funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements. The nonmajor funds are
detailed in the combing section of the statements.

The water and sewer fund, solid waste fund, and airport fund are the major proprietary
funds. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category for the governmental and
proprictary combined) for the determination of major funds.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the
change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The
focus of the fund financial statements is on the major individual funds of the governmental
and business-type categories. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be
analyzed and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements—The government-wide financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Nonexchange transactions, in
which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value
in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Derived tax revenues
(i.e., sales taxes) are recognized in the period when the exchange transaction on the tax is
imposed or when the resources are received, whichever occurs first.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements—The governmental fund level financial
statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The focus of the governmental funds' measurement
(in the fund statements) is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial
position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period. For this
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual

accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is made.
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Ad valorem, franchise, and sales tax revenues associated with the current fiscal period are
recognized under the susceptible to accrual concept. Licenses and permits, charges for
services, fines and forfeitures, contributions, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as
revenues when received in cash, as the resulting receivable is immaterial. Investment
earnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. In applying the
susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are,
however, essentially two types of these revenues.

In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts
will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures
recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and
are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements.
These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible
to accrual criteria are met.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy
to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Business-type activities and all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present
increases and decreases (e.g., revenues and expenses) in net total assets.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principle ongoing operations.
The principle operating revenues of the City's water and sewer, solid waste and airport
funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
proprictary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund—The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

Capital Repair and Replacement Fund—This fund accounts for the City’s capital assets
and ongoing capital projects not associated with the proprietary funds.

Municipal Street—Accounts for the special assessment gasoline tax received from the
state and used for the maintenance and improvement of city streets.

Governmental Funds with Deficit Fund Balance—While the total unreserved fund balance
is not in a deficit position, the City has two funds with deficit balances as of June 30, 2009:
Municipal Street fund of $(182,146) and Library fund of $(434). The City has made capital
expenditures and encumbrances in these funds in anticipation of additional revenues and
transfers.
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The City reports the following major business-type funds:

Water and Sewer Fund—The water and sewer fund is used to account for the provision
of water services to the residents of the City of Portales. All activities necessary to
provide such services are accounted for in this fund including administration, operations
billing and maintenance. The Water and Sewer fund presented in the financial statements
consists of several funds: Water and Sewer Improvement Bond Fund, Water and
Wastewater Fund, Water Conservation Fund, and Water Improvement Fund.

Solid Waste Fund—The solid waste fund accounts for the billings and collections of the
trash collection services.

Airport Fund—The airport fund accounts for the operations of the municipal airport.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City
considers all highly liquid investments, including restricted assets, with a maturity when
purchased of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Deposits and Investments—Investments in the City's cash are stated at cost, which
approximates fair value. State statutes authorize the City to invest in certificates of deposit,
obligations of the state and the U.S. government, and the New Mexico State Treasurer's
investments pool. Cash is reported at book value. All other investments are carried at fair
market value using quoted market prices. Interest income, realized gains and losses on
investment transactions, and amortization of premiums/discounts on investment purchases
are included for financial statement purposes as investment income and are allocated to
participating funds based on the specific identification of the source of funds for a given
investment.

Receivables and Payables—Activity between funds that is representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as
interfund balance. Long term advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial
statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds
to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available
financial resources.

Inventory—Proprietary fund inventories are recorded at the lower of cost or market on a
first-in, first-out basis, and consist of operating supplies held for use in operations and are
recorded as an expense when consumed rather than when purchased.

Restricted Assets——Certain long-term assets in the proprietary funds are classified as
restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited to payments for debt
service or other purposes such as "deposits held in trust for others."

Interfund Activity—Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided,
reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as interfund balance as appropriate and are
subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or
near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related
cost as reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers
between governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide
financial statements.

-24 -



Capital Assets—Capital assets include: property, plant, utility systems, equipment, and
infrastructure assets. Infrastructure includes streets, sidewalks, bridges, drainage systems,
lighting systems and similar items. Such assets are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities columns the government-wide financial statements. The
government defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of more than
$5,000, and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Assets are capitalized at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. It is the policy of the
City not to capitalize computer software. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add value of the asset or materially extend the asset's lives are not capitalized.

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the City had retroactively reported all
infrastructure assets owned by the municipality.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-
like activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets under construction.

Property, plant, and equipment, and infrastructure of the primary government is depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and building improvements 30-40
Water and sewer plants 40
Streets 10-20
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 5-20
Computer equipment and software 3-5

Compensated Absences—It is the City’s policy to permit some employees to accumulate
earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. All sick pay and vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the government-wide or proprietary fund financial statements.

Deferred Revenues—Within the governmental funds, revenues must be available in order to
be recognized. Revenues such as real estate taxes that are not available are recorded as
deferred revenues and reflected as a liability within the balance sheet.

Long-Term Debt—In the government-wide fund financial statements, long-term debt is
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental or business-type activities within the
statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the period. The face amount of debt issued
is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Customer deposits—Cash held in the proprietary funds for customer deposits is restricted.
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Net Assets—The government-wide financial statements utilize a net assets presentation.
Net assets are categorized as follows:

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt—This category reflects the portion
of net assets that are associated with capital assets less outstanding capital asset
related debt.

Restricted net assets—This category reflects the portion of net assets that have third
party limitations on their use.

Unrestricted net assets—This category reflects net assets of the City, not restricted
for any project or other purpose. When the City incurs an expense for which it may
use either restricted or unrestricted assets, it uses the restricted assets first whenever
they will have to be returned if they are not used.

Fund Equity—In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of
fund balance that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted. Designations
represent tentative managerial plans that are subject to change.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Data—The City Council adopts an annual budget for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Debt Service Funds and the Enterprise Funds by
following the budgetary procedures outlined below. The City is required to present the adopted
and final amended budgeted revenues and expenditures for each of these funds. The City
compares the final amended budget to actual revenues and expenditures based on the City's
modified accrual basis of accounting.

The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the general-
purpose financial statements:

1. The City submits a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing July 1, prior to
June 30. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
A budget is proposed for the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Debt Service and
Proprietary Funds.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. The budgets are then submitted
to the Department of Finance and Administration-Local Government Division for review,
adjustment and approval.

3. Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution and the council
is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments with any fund. Any revisions
that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Department of Finance and
Administration-Local Government Division.

4. Budgets for budgeted funds are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Budgetary comparisons have been presented in this report on the basis of the legally adopted
budget.
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5. Appropriations lapse at year end with any unspent cash balance being available for
expenditures and appropriation in the subsequent year’s budget.

6. The level of classification detail in which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations
for each budget is in fund total.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes authorize the investment of City funds in a wide variety of instruments including
certificates of deposit and other similar obligations, state investment pool, money market
accounts, and United States Government obligations. All invested funds of the City properly
followed State deposit and investment requirements as of June 30, 2009.

Deposits of funds may be made in interest or non-interest bearing checking accounts in one or
more financial institution. Deposits may be made to the extent that they are insured by an agency
of the United States or by collateral deposited as security or by bond given by the financial
institution.

In accordance with FDIC, public unit deposits are funds owned by the City. Time deposits,
savings deposits and interest bearing NOW accounts of a public unit in an institution in the same
state will be insured up to $250,000 in aggregate and separate from the $250,000 coverage for
public unit demand deposits at the same institution.

Excess of funds may be temporarily invested in securities which are issued by the State or by the
United States government, or by their departments or agencies, and which are either direct
obligations of the State or the United States or are backed by the full faith and credit of those
governments.

The rate of interest in non-demand interest-bearing accounts is set by the State Board of Finance,
but the rate of interest will not be less than one hundred percent of the asked price on United
States treasury bills of the same maturity on the day of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk—Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits and investments may not be returned to it. The City does not have a formal
deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than following state statutes. The City has not
suffered any previous losses and management believes any risk of loss of funds is minimal.

Statutes require collateral pledged for deposits in excess of the federal deposit insurance to be
delivered, or a joint safekeeping receipt be issued, to the City for at least 50% of the amount on
deposit with the institution, and 102% for amounts invested in repurchase agreements with the
institution.

The types of collateral an institution is permitted to use as pledged securities are limited to direct
obligations of the United States Government and all bonds issued by any agency or political
subdivision of the State of New Mexico.

The schedules listed below disclose requirements on reporting the insured and uninsured portions
of the City’s deposits regarding custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk—Interest rate risk is the risk that the change in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of the investments. The City does not have a formal policy to manage its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Bank of Albuquerque’s repurchase agreement with Bank of
America and the AP Institutional US Treasury Funds #52 has no rating as of June 30, 2009. The
City’s investments as of June 30, 2009 include the repurchase agreements having a Weighted
Average Maturity (WAM) of 27 days. The fair value of the repurchase agreement investment is
$44,528 as of June 30, 2009.
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New Mexico State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool—The City maintains accounts
with the New Mexico State Treasurer Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), an external
investment pool. The LGIP is not SEC registered, and as a government investment pool, exempt
from disclosing concentration risk. The LGIP is rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s and has a
weighted average maturity of 43 days.

Section 6-10-10.1, NMSA 1978 empowers the State Treasurer, with the advice and consent of the
State Board of Finance, to invest money held in the short-term investment funds in securities that
are issued by the United States government or by its departments or agencies and are either
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government or are agencies sponsored by
the United States government.

The LGIP investments are monitored by the same investment committee and the same policies and
procedures that apply to all other state investments. The pool does not have unit shares and
earnings are distributed monthly by the State Treasurer to the participants in proportion to the
amount and length of time the participants have funds on deposit. Participation in the LGIP is
voluntary and can be liquidated by the City at the City council’s discretion. The City’s balance in
the LGIP account as of June 30, 2009 is $1,822,422.

New Mexico Finance Authority Investment—The City maintains investment funds on account
with the New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA), which in turn invests the funds in the State
Treasurer. NMFA’s cash on deposit with the State Treasurer is invested by the State Treasurer in
“overnight” repurchase programs. State statutes require that all deposits held by the State
Treasurer be collateralized at a minimum level of 50%. Repurchase agreements are collateralized
at 102% by the NMFA’s internal policies. Funds held by the NMFA acting as trustee for the City
are invested in money market accounts that invest in United States Treasury obligations and/or
repurchase agreements secured by U.S. Treasury obligations. Separate financial statements of the
NMFA and State Treasurer collateral, categories of risk, and market value of purchased
investments which may differ from the cash deposited with the NMFA by the City.

Other Investments—The City also maintains $1,637,763 in investments outside of the internal
investment pool in the LGIP. The funds are invested in money market funds investing in federal
government-backed securities. The investments are in compliance with state statutes regarding
investments of governmental funds. These investments have not been rated.

All deposits are collateralized with eligible securities, as described by New Mexico State Statute,
in amounts equal to at least 50% of the City carrying value of the deposits (demand and
certificates of deposit).

Such collateral, as permitted by the state statutes is held in each respective depository bank's
collateral pool at a Federal Reserve Bank, or member bank other than the depository bank, in the
name of the respective depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all of the public
deposits it holds with the exception of deposit insurance provided by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation.
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A summary of the cash deposits at June 30, 2009 is as follows:

First Portales Wells New Mexico Linsco/
Community  National Fargo Finance Bank of Private
Bank Bank Bank Authority Albuquerque  Ledger Total

Total cash deposits  $ 4,630,097 $ 53,104 § 523 § 300,091 § - $ 1,637,762 & 6.621,577

AP Institutional US

Treasury Fund #52

held by the trustee

in the City's name - - - - 322.082 - 322,082

Securities

underlying a

repurchase held by

the investment

trustee's

counterparty in the

City's name - - - - 44,528 - 44,528

FDIC/SPIC
coverage (4,754,808)  (250.000)  (250,000) - (500,000)  (500,000) (6,254.808)

Uninsured funds
subject to custodial
credit risk (124,711) (196,896) (249,477) 300,091 (133,390) 1,137,762 733,379

Lloyd's of London
securities insurance
protection - - - - - 1,137,762 1,137,762

Collateralized by

securities held by

the pledging

institution or by its

trust department or

agent in the City's

name 494,294 - - - - - 494,294

Funds (over) under

collateralized - total

funds subject to

custodial creditrisk § (619,005) $ (196.896) § (249,477) § 300,091 $§ (133.390) $ - $ (898,677)
_— I ——— S EE——

The following summarizes the collateral requirements at June 30, 2009:

50% of uninsured

funds $  (62,356)%  (98,448) § (124,739) $ - $ - $ - b (285,543)
102% of repurchase
agreement - - - - 45419 - 45.419
Pledged securities 494,294 - - - - - 494,294
(Over) under
collateralized § (556,650)% (98,448) % (124,739) § - $ 45419 $ E $ (734,418)
[=————"—— s B ——————— B ———— . e ———— R —— e |
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A detailed listing of the pledged collateral is contained in the supplemental financial
information section of this report. According to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,
public unit deposits are owned by the public unit. Time deposits, savings deposits and interest
bearing money market accounts at a public unit in an institution in the same state will be
insured up to $250,000 in aggregate and separate from the $250,000 coverage for public unit
demand deposits at the same institution.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable reported in the business-type activities at June 30, 2009 represent net
balances due from customers of water and sewer and solid waste services provided by the City.
The following is the detail of the business-type receivables at June 30, 2009:

Allowance
Accounts for
Receivable Uncollectibles Total

Water and sewer $ 543,640 § (235,329) $ 308,311
Solid waste 139,399 (44,151) 95,248

3 683,039 § (279,480) $ 403,559

The general fund receivable of $104,707 consists of ambulance charges outstanding at June
30, 2009. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been established for the ambulance
accounts receivable, as management believes the amounts are fully collectible from either third
party insurance companies or the patient. Management reevaluates the collectibility of the
ambulance receivables on an ongoing basis.

Taxes receivable for the general fund are considered fully collectible and consist of the
following:

Taxes
Receivable
Gross receipts taxes $ 724331
Franchise 77,489
Property taxes 11,352
Other 4,346
$ 817,518

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental
funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received but
not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year deferred revenue which related to
delinquent property taxes was $5,116.
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INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLE AND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers reflect a temporary transfer of cash due to temporary needs within the fund. The
composition of interfund transfers during the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

TRANSFERS:

From Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Library Fund

Capital Repair and Replacement
CDBG - Capital Projects
Planning

Airport Enterprise

Correction Fund

Portales Area Transit

Municipal Street Fund

W&S Improvement Revenue Bonds
Water & Sewer

BALANCES:

From Fund

Water and Sewer
General Fund

General Fund

Capital Projects
General Fund

Water & Sewer

General Fund

General Fund
Economic Development

To Fund

Solid Waste
Water and Sewer
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Water & Sewer
Water Improvement

To Fund

Water Conservation

Streets Fund

Capital Repair and Replacement
Water and Sewer

Solid Waste

General Fund
Beautification/Litter Control
Portales Area Transit

General Fund
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Amount

$ 75.000
1.280,000
25,000
373,178
50,000
547
47,952
10,000
49,500
89,846
427,745

206,804

$ 2635572
—_—

Amount

$ 23,967
249,818
168,605

401
169

135
1.028
23,754
157,514

Purpose

Subsidize general fund operations
Subsidize general fund operations
Fund library operations

Fund capital expenditures

Fund match for federal CDBG grant
Fund match for planning grant
Subsidize airport operations
Subsidize correctional operations
Subsidize P.A.T. operations

Fund street expenditures

Debt service payments

Fund capital improvements reserve

Purpose

Fund Expenditure Reimbursement
Fund Expenditure Reimbursement
Fund Expenditure Reimbursement
Fund Expenditure Reimbursement
GGRT Collections Due

GGRT Collections Due

Fund Expenditure Reimbursement
Fund Expenditure Reimbursement
Fund Expenditure Reimbursement



6. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets and changes occurring during the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total assets not being depreciated

Assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Total assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Total assets being depreciated, net
Governmental capital assets, net

Business-type Activities:
Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total assets not being depreciated

Assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Total assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Total assets being depreciated, net

Business-type capital assets, net

Balance Retirements Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions and Transfers June 30, 2009
$ 698,102 § - b - $ 698,102
322,871 1,505,193 (210,949) 1,617,115
1,020,973 1,505,193 (210,949) 2,315,217
5,923,514 355,540 - 6,279,054
2,949,702 684,843 - 3,634,545
2,640,561 103,157 (1,025) 2,742,693
203,872 - - 203,872
3,175,465 438,127 (95,156) 3,518,436
14,893,114 1,581,667 (96,181) 16,378,600
(2,957,537) (184,459) - (3,141,996)
(977,239) (99,633) - (1,076,872)
(2,070,256) (150,448) 325 (2,220,379)
(138,257) (19,166) - (157,423)
(2,253,981) (317,468) 91,967 (2,479,482)
(8,397,270) (771,174) 92,292 (9,076,152)
6,495,844 810,493 (3.889) 7,302,448
$ 7,516,817 $ 2,315,686 § (214,838) $§ 9,617,665
$ 4,593,347 $ - $ - $ 4,593,347
33,520 182,943 - 216,463
4,626,867 182,943 - 4,809,810
1,153,940 - 13,751 1,167,691
17,763,225 - (13,751) 17,749,474
2,707,357 1,513,156 - 4,220,513
4,929 - - 4,929
1,134,950 204,354 - 1,339,304
22,764,401 1,717,510 - 24,481,911
(864,020) (22,530) - (886,550)
(10,955,372) (514,432) - (11,469,804)
(1,799,802) (209,902) - (2,009,704)
(3,481) (493) - (3,974)
(771,534) (73,063) - (844,597)
(14,394,209) (820,420) - (15,214,629)
8,370,192 897,090 - 9,267,282

$ 12,997,059 §

1,080,033 §

§ 14,077,092
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The City reported $771,174 of depreciation in general fixed assets in use by governmental funds on the
Government-Wide Statement of Activities. The City did not allocate the depreciation to the various
governmental functions, instead presenting the amount separately from the departmental functions on
the statement.

LONG TERM DEBT

A summary of changes in long-term debt, including capital lease obligations for the year ended June
30, 2009, was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2009

Governmental Activities:

Sales Tax Refund/Improv. Bonds $ 670,000 $ - $  (220,000) § 450,000
NMFA — Recreation Center 380,318 * (27,758) 352,560
Lasalle Bank — HVAC System 23,527 - (14,501) 9,026
Municipal Court Building 15,402 - (15,402) -
John Deere Credit - - - -
Kansas St. Bank — Fire Truck 125,776 - (23,085) 102,691
Parking Lot - - - -
NM Retiree Health Care Authority 79,836 - (15,213) 64,623
NMFA Loan - Fire pumper Truck 233,334 - (19,879) 213,455
Total Governmental Debt $ 1,528, 193 § - $ (335,83 8) $ 1 ,] 92,355
Business-Type Activities:
Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds $ 1,395,000 $ - $  (325,000) $ 1,070,000
NMFA — Blackwater Well Field 2,201,773 - (236,309) 1,965,464
Land Capital Lease 105,000 - (70,000) 35,000
NMRHCA 13,050 - (2,234) 10,816
Water Improvement - 1,140,268 - 1,140,268
Total Business-Type Debt $ 3,714,823 $§ 1,140,268 $  (633,543) § 4,221,548

Scheduled principal and interest payments on the City's long term debt are as follows:

Year
Ended Governmental Business-
June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Type Interest Total

2010 $ 328,574 § 66,584 $ 395,158  § 666,965 § 171,683 § 838,648

2011 312,431 50,905 363,336 658,775 144,195 802,970
2012 100,478 34,959 135,437 691,335 115,262 806,597
2013 95,690 19,228 114,918 328,723 84,140 412,863
2014 56,816 15,035 71,851 340,560 70,644 411,204
2015 -2019 298,366 38,816 337,182 1,535,190 282,790 1,817,980

Total § 1,192,355 § 225,527 $§ 1,417,882 § 4,221,548 § 868,714 & 5,090,262
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Below are the terms, amounts due within one year, and maturity dates of the City's outstanding long

term debt:
Due
Interest Payment Payment Maturity Within Servicing
Description Rate Frequency Amount Date One Year Fund
Governmental Activities:
Semiannual  Approximately Sales Tax
Sales Tax Refund/Improv. Bonds Variesto Interest, Annual  $253,000 June 2011 $230.000 Revenue
5.00% Principal Annually
NMFA — Recreation Center Varies to Monthly $4.085 May 2019 27,840 Capital
5.47% Projects
Lasalle Bank — HVAC System 6.25% Quarterly $3,625 December 2009 9,026 Energy
Conservation
Kansas St. Bank — Fire Truck 4.30% Annual $28,491 March 2013 24,076  Fire Protection
NM Retiree Health Care
Authority 7.50% Monthly $1,782 June 2013 16,176 General
NMFA —Fire Pumper Truck
Varlesto 3.77% Annual $26,676 May 2008 21,456  Fire Protection
$328,574
]
Business-Type Activities:
Semiannual ~ Approximately
Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds Varies to  Interest, Annual $391,000 June 2012 $ 340,000 Water and
4.90% Principal Annually Sewer
Varies to
NMFA — Blackwater Well Field 4.79% Monthly $27,918 May 2016 245,963 Water and
Sewer
0% -
Imputed at  Semiannual $35.000 December 2009 35,000 Water and
Land Capital Lease 4% Sewer
September 11, Water
Water Improvement 3% Annual $78,308.8 2029 $43.358  Conservation
Solid Waste,
NMRHCA 7.50% Monthly $261 June 2013 2,644  Airport, Water
and Sewer
$ 666,965
I

8. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City pays any accumulated accrued vacation leave in a lump cash payment to employees upon
retirement or to the employee’s estate in the event of death. Compensation for sick leave is limited
to time-off and is not monetarily compensated. The Water and Sewer, Solid Waste, Airport, General
Fund, or Portales Area Transit special revenue fund, as appropriate, are used to liquidate the liability.
The City does not pay accrued sick leave upon termination. The liability also includes the City’s
portion of employment taxes related to the hours and time accrued by the employee.

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30,2008 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2009 One Year

Governmental Activities § 322,865 § 216,723 $ (232,755) § 306,833 § 32,264
Business-Type Activities 53,989 33,667 (39,904) 47752 6,447

$ 376,854 § 250,390 $ (272,659) § 354,585 § 38,711
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10.

11.

REVENUE BONDS

The City has the capacity and has issued both Sales Tax and Revenue Bonds whereby the City
has pledged income derived from the Gross Receipts Tax and billings on water to pay the
required debt service on the bonds. Moody’s Investors Service affirmed the A3 underlying rating
for both the Sales Tax and Revenue Bonds in July, 2009. No new bonds were issued in the
current year.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require that the City place a final cover on its landfill
when closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for
thirty years after closure of the landfill site. In addition to operating expenses related to current
activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related liability are being recognized based on
the future closure and post-closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date the
landfill no longer accepts waste.

The recognition of these landfill closure and post-closure care costs is based on the amount of the
landfill used during the year. The landfill was closed in 1997. The estimated liability for landfill
closure and postclosure care costs is $706,380 as of June 30, 2009, which is based on 100
percent usage (filled) of the landfill. The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and
postclosure care is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and
services required to monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of June 30, 2009.
However, the actual cost of post-closure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in
technology, or changes in state and federal landfill laws and regulations.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural
disasters; and employee health, dental, and accident benefits. The City participates in the New
Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund risk pool. The New Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund risk pool operates as
a common risk management and insurance program for workers compensation and property and
casualty coverage.

These funds are funded entirely by member contributions and are administered by the New
Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund. The pools are authorized by joint powers agreements entered into
by each participating entity as a separate and independent government and legal entity pursuant
to the provisions of Section 11-1-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978. The City's contributions for the year
ended June 30, 2009 were $492,958.

The City has not filed any claims for which the settlement amount exceeded the insurance
coverage in any preceding years. However, should a claim be filed against the Authority which
exceeds the insurance coverage, the City would be responsible for a loss in excess of the
coverage amounts. As claims are filed, the New Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund assesses and
estimates the potential for loss.

At June 30, 2009 no unpaid claims have been filed which exceed the policy limits and to the best

of management's knowledge and belief all know and unknown claims will be covered by
insurance. No major lawsuits have been filed against the City.
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12.

13.

PENSION PLAN - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Plan Description—Substantially all of the City's full time employees participate in a public
employee retirement system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement Act (Chapter 10,
Article 11 NMSA 1978). The Public Employee Retirement Association (PERA) is the
administrator of the plan, which is a cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit retirement
plan. The plan provides for retirement, disability benefits, survivor benefits, and cost of living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained by writing to PERA, P. 0. Box 2123, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504 2123.
The report is also available on PERA's website at www.pera.state.nn.us.

Funding Policy—Plan members are required to contribute 9.15% for general employees, 16.2%
for fire department employees and 7% for police department employees of their gross salary. The
City is required to contribute 9.15% for general employees, 21.25% for fire department
employees and 18.5% for police department employees of their gross covered salary. The
contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established in State statue under
Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of the
legislature. The City's contributions to PERA for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007
were $590,505, $571,314 and $537,562, respectively, which equal the amount of the required
contributions for each fiscal year.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - STATE RETIREE HEALTH CARE PLAN

Plan Description—The City contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the
New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA). The RHCA provides health care insurance
and prescription drug benefits to retired employees of participating New Mexico government
agencies, their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. The RHCA Board
was established by the Retiree Health Care Act (Chapter 10, Article 7C, NMSA, 1978). The
Board is responsible for establishing and amending benefit provisions of the healthcare plan and
is also authorized to designate optional and/or voluntary benefits like dental, vision,
supplemental life insurance, and long-term care policies.

Eligible retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to
retirement and whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a
participant in the RHCA plan on the person's behalf unless that person retires before the
employer's RHCA effective date, in which the event the time period required for employee and
employer contributions shall become the period of time between the employet's effective date
and the date of retirement; 2) retirees defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1, 1990; 3)
former legislators who served at least two years; 4) former governing authority members who
served at least four years.

The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the postemployment healthcare plan. The
report and further information can be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care Authority at
4308 Carlisle NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, NM 87107.

Funding Policy—The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes the
RHCA Board to establish the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for
healthcare benefits. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to a service
based subsidy rate schedule for the medical plus basic life plan plus an additional participation
fee of five dollars if the eligible participant retired prior to the employer's RHCA effective date
or is a former legislator or former governing authority member. Former legislators and
governing authority members are required to pay 100% of the insurance premium to cover their
claims and the administrative expenses of the plan. The monthly premium rate schedule can be
obtained from the RHCA or viewed on their website at www.nmrhca.state.nm.us.
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15.

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that
establishes the required contributions of participating employers and their employees. The statue
requires each participating employer to contribute 1.3% of each participating employee's annual
salary; each participating employee is required to contribute .65% of their salary. Employers
joining the program after 1/1/98 are also required to make a surplus-amount contribution to the
RHCA based on one of two formulas at agreed-upon intervals.

The RHCA plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The employer, employee and retiree
contributions are required to be remitted to the RHCA on a monthly basis. The statutory
requirements for the contributions can be changed by the New Mexico State Legislature.

The City's contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were
$56,895, $55,007, and $51,053, respectively, in employer contributions to the Retiree Health
Care Authority.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amount, if any, to
be immaterial.

The City has several capital projects in progress at various states of completion. The majority of
these capital projects are being funded by reimbursement type grants, which require the City to
incur the expenditure then submit a request for reimbursement to the grantor. These requests
must be made before the respective grants expire.

The City is involved in various claims and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business. The
City is insured through the New Mexico City Insurance Authority. In the opinion of
management, the outcome of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial
position of the City.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions which is
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010, with earlier
application encouraged. The Statement establishes the fund balance classifications for
governmental funds. The City is analyzing the effect that this statement will have on its financial
statements, and currently believes it will have no significant effect on the financial statements for
the upcoming year.

In March 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement
No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments, which is effective upon its issuance. The objective of this Statement is to
incorporate the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local
governments into the GASB authoritative literature. The City incorporated this statement for the
current fiscal year, and believes it had no significant effect on the financial statements for the
year.

In March 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement
No. 56, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in the AICPA
Statements on Auditing Standards, which is effective upon its issuance. This Statement
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for related party transactions,
subsequent events, and going concern considerations. The City incorporated this statement for
the current fiscal year, and believes it had no significant effect on the financial statements for the
year.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

DESCRIPTION OF NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2009

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special
assessments, expendable trusts and major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

Correction Fund — Accounts for the operation and maintenance of public holding cells and local
correctional facilities through the assessment of traffic violations within the City’s jurisdiction.

Emergency Medical Services Fund — Accounts for the state funding and expenditures of emergency
medical equipment and supplies for the fire department.

Enhanced 911 Fund — Accounts for state inkind support and operations for the Enhanced 911 emergency
system.

Fire Protection Fund — Accounts for state fire allotment funds received for the operations and
maintenance of the fire department.

Beautification/Litter Control Fund — Accounts for the state grant funds necessary to aid in the litter
control and beautification of the municipality.

Law Enforcement Protection Fund — Accounts for the state grant funds for law enforcement support and
operations.

Library Fund — Accounts for the state, county, and private grants and donations to purchase books and
provide library supplies and operational expense.

Lodgers Tax — Accounts for the special assessment tax on motel room rentals used for the promotion of
the City.

Recreation Fund — Accounts for operations and maintenance of recreation facilities financed by a specific
tax on cigarette sales and other grants and donations.

Local DWI Fund — Accounts for state driving while intoxicated fines and other state grants for the
education and prevention of driving while intoxicated arrests.

Law Enforcement Special Service Fund — Accounts for the revenue received from traffic safety fees to
promote law enforcement education in the community.

CDBG Rehabilitation Loan Repayment Fund — Accounts for the collection and disbursement of the

federal and state grants collected by the City on behalf of the citizens to assist in eligible single family
home improvements.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(Continued)

Portales Area Transit Fund — Accounts for the state grants received and ridership fees charged to
operate and maintain the local public transportation system.

Community Development Block Grant Fund — Accounts for the state and federal funding received for
the improvement of streets in designated parts of the City.

Comprehensive Plan — Accounts for the state grants received for the development of a comprehensive
plan for the City.

Energy Conservation Lease Debt Service — Accounts for the dedicated gross receipts taxes collected to
fund the debt service on the HVAC system.

Risk Management — Accounts for the expenditures of unemployment and other insurance premiums paid
by the City.

Criminal Justice — Accounts for the state courts fees collected through municipal court on behalf of the
state.

MainStreet — Accounts for the donations and grants received and the related expenditures in conjunction
with the Mainstreet Portales project.

Economic Development — Accounts for the grants received and the related expenditures in conjunction
with the promotion of economic development within the City.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Fund — This fund accounts for the City’s capital project in conjunction with the
purchase and remodeling of the building for the City’s recreation center.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Fund — This fund accounts for the collection of allocated gross receipts taxes
and the related debt service of the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds issued in November, 1997.

-39-



-up-

panunuo)
8T $ 8T $ o0£C'e § 618%6L $ ¢ $ 978'L § CI6€ $ sooue[eq puny pue Saffiqel] [elo]
(rev) 8T 4301 0IS™LL 8 978°L 61v sadouE[eq pUnyj [B10],
- . - - - - _ucs.w vu_?num anuh—
- - - - - - puny so0foad [eyrde)
(rer) 8T ey 01S°LL S 978°'L 61 puny anuaAas [eadg
ur Uoﬁoau.— nbowﬁcmmmowcb
”Uo?_Omo.ED
“moocm_mn_ @cs.r.—
9% 860°C 60€°C - - £6+°¢ SAI[IqeI] [eI0]
- 820°I = - - - spunj Jay10 01 ang
- OBO,— - - - - mo_‘a—mm pPaniddy
- - mom,N - - - 1S2491Ul panIody
9% $ $ - $ - $ - $ E $ gév'c $ 9[qeAed spunodsoy
'sanIiqer]
SAONVIVE
ANNA ANV STLLI'TIIVI'T
. - |
8T $ 8T $ o0€Te $ 6I86L $ < $ 9I8°L § Tl6C $ §13SSE [E10],
- = - - - - Spunj JI9Y10 woly angg
- - < - - - 9]qRAI229] 1S2I3JUI PANIODY
. NecTe - - . o 9]qBAI2921 [EIUSWILISA0SIIU]
= = o - = - u_nmzvoe Saxe],
- - = - - - SJUSUIISIAU]
. = GEG'ET - = - SjuareAIMba yses pue yses pajornsay
8¢ $ 8¢ $ > § SLg'sc § ¢ $§ 9T8’L $ Tl6'E $ S)us[eAINba yses pue yse)
SLASSY
puny punyg uorpadjorg puny puny puny puny sadiAIIg puny
Lieaqry JudwddIojuy [013u0)) 1311 uoIdoly 116 (BN PIA uon3daLIo)
juonedynedyq EATR | pasueyuy Kduasawyg
spunyg anuIAMY [rI3dS
60027 "0€ ANAL

SANNA TVINTHNANITAOD JOLVIANON
LATHHS HONVIVE ONINIFINOD

SH'TVLIOd 40 ALID
OJIXAIN MIAN 40 HLVILS



- -

panuruo)
TS9°19 $ 80Ty $ SIS $ €T0°LT $ SI816 ziLort $ €61'8€C $ sodue[eq puny pue SaII|Iqel] [BI0],
75919 vT8'El SIT°8 €20°LT TL906 FOL™Q01 LESITT seouefeq punj [B10],
- - = - - - - Spuny 291A19S 199
- - - = = - - pung syo2(oid [ende)
89°19 yT8'¢l SII1°'8 €20°LT TL9°06 POL90T LEYITT punj anuaAaj [e1oadg
:up paptodas ‘pareudisapun)
poAIasaIun)
:saoue[Rq punyg
- ¥17°8C - - evIl 800y 95€91 SenIIqel[ [el0 ],
- PeL'ET - - - - = spunj 19410 031 anq
- SLY'E - - - 0SS°T = SSLIE[ES PanIddy
o - - - - - - 1S2I3JU] PANIDIY
- $ ¢86 $ - $ - $ Pl 8S°l $ 99€91 8 o[qeAed sunosoy
-sonijiqery
SHJONVIVE
aNN4 ANV SHLLITIIVIT
789°19 $ 80Ty $ SIIg § €T0°LT § <I816 TILolt $§ ¢€61°8¢€C S S$198SE [B10,
10¥ - - - - & - Spuny Jay10 woiy ang
= = - - - = - 9]qRAII21 JS2I21UI PINIDIY
= L60°C1 - - - e - 9[QBAI2021 [BIUSWUIIA0SINU]
) l - - - v8S°S 98011 3]qRAIS0AI SAXB].
= = - - o = - SIUAWISIAU]
- - - - - - - sjuaeAlnbs ysed pue yses pajoLsay
[ST°19 $ I¥6'6T § ¢Ir's $ €T0°LT § SI8I6 8T1°501 § Lo1¥ee § sjua[eAINba yseo pue yse)
SLASSV
puny pung pung puny puny puny punj
juean) yaorg Jsuea |, jusmiedoy ueo]  IIAIIG [B1IAdg welsolg uoIIBIIINY XB ],
jududojasa(q BaLY S3[8)10g uonBNIqeyay JUIWAILOJUY 1AAd 18207 s.198por]
Aunwwo) D4dd mE]
spunyg anudAdY [e12adg
6007 *0€ ANAC

SANNA TVINTANITAOD YOrvIANON
LAHHS HONVIVE ONINIFINOD

SHTVLIOd 40 ALID
OJIXHIN MIN 40 ALVLS



- (-

panunuo)
801°916°I $ 8E9LIT'I $ 81801 $ 6£hE $ os1ool $ 1996 $ sadue[eq puny pue sanIfIqel] [e10]
00€°TOLT 8€9°196 818°01 16L°C 0S1°001 0€9°6 sadue[eq punj [B10,],
R - = 5 S punj 991AI95 3q3(]
- - - - - puny s193f{0id [eyde)
00€°10L 1 8£9°196 818°01 ISLT 0S1°001 0£9°6 punj anudAdy [eroadg
:ur payiodar ‘pejeusdisapu)
paAlasaIun)
:sooue|eq pung
808V1T 000951 - 889 ® LE SaniIqel] [B10L
8LYT - - = B spuny Jayjo 01 ang
$60°L - - - - SOLIB[ES PanIody
IvET 2 = a - LE 1S219]UI PANINDY
685081 $ 000961 $ - $ 889 b - b (S o1qeAed sjunoooy
‘saulqery
SHONVIVE
ANNA ANV SHLLI'TIEVIT
801°916°1 $ 8EYLII $ 81801 § 6epc $ 0SI°001 § L99°6 $ S1essE [B10L
SI16°LST PISLST - - ™ spunj Jay10 woJy ang
g - - - & 2[qEAI2D91 1S2I1UI PINIDDY
LTE'ST - - o - 3[qBATDAI [BIUSWIUIAOSISIU]
65065 TL69E - - - LIV 9[qBAIS0RI SAXE],
168°L8 - - - 168°L8 SIUSUIISIAU]
6£6°€T = - . - S1ua[eAInba Ysed pue yses pajornsay
TI0°TLS T $§ TI°eTs $§ 81801 § o6tve $ 66TTI $ o0sTL $ siua[eAINDb2 Yseo pue yse)
SLASSY
spuny puny puny puny puny puny 3dAlg
INUIAIY erdadg juswdopasa JFRNSUIEBIA Jansnp JUSWIBBUBIA] 1q3(q Ised
JolewuoN JIWOU0dy [eurwagL)) sy UoIEAIISUO) JAIsuayardwo))
1EI0L ASaaug
spuny anudAdY [e1Iadg
600Z “0€ ANNL

SANNA TVINHNNIHAOD YOLVINNON
LAHHS HONVIVE ONINIFINOD

STIVLIOd 40 ALLD
OJIXHAN MAN 40 ALV.LS



“ep-

papn[ouo))
80L°08€C $ PocTre $ 967°TTl $ Saoug[eq puny pue sanlfIqe] [e10.L
LTOI91°C 62 0ve 867611 Sadue[eq puny [0,
6Th 0rE 6T 0vE = Spunj 39IAJIs 120
867611 = 86611 spury spsloid [ende)
00€°T0L7] - - Sspunj anuaAal [eraads
‘ur papodasr “pajeudisapun
‘poAlasaluf)
:sasue[eq pun,j
189°61C SL8'L 866'C SaMINqRI] [BI0L
8LYT - - spuny 12410 0} an(g
S60°L - - SOLIR[ES PANIdIY
61TL CL3T 866°C 1S012JU1 PaNIDIY
6867081 $ = $ - $ s1qeAed siunosoy
:sanIqery
SEONVIVL
ANAA ANV SHILITIEVI'T
80L°08€°T $ POETHE $ 9e6TTC $ Syasse [e10 ],
S16°LST - - Spuny 12yjo wolj an(g
Ic - 91 A]qRAI2991 JS2J1Ul PANIOIY
LTESI - - 3[qRAT292] [RJUSWILIDACZIU]
£86'801 YSLIY 0LT'8 9]QBAID02I SAXB ],
168°L8 - - SJUSUIISIAU]
ILTYE] = 2EE011 SIUS[BAIND2 YSBO pUB YSEO PajoLiIsay]
0F€'9L8°( $§ 0€5°00¢ §  8LLE 4 sjus[eAlnba yseo pue yse)
SLASSY
spuny spuog SRETLNE |
[EIU W UIIA0L) INUIAY XE, [ende)
Jofgwuop] |e10, sajes
spuny spuny
A5 192 spsloa [epde)
6002 ‘0€ ANNC

SANNA TVINHANITAOD YOLVIANON
LAIHS HONVIVE ONINIFINOD

SHTIVILYOd 40 ALID
OOIXHIN MHN 40 HLVLS



-pp-

panunuon

(ver) $ 8T § TEll $ OISLL $ ¢ § 978°L § 6lv $ 1ed£ JO pua - 2oue[eq pung
(To1°L) (ss7) 0611 681°€LE S 789y 686°L 1834 jo Buruwdaq - soue|eq puny
8TL'9 €3¢ (8%) (6L9°560) = wl'e (oLsL) S90UE|Rq PUNy Ul SAZUEYD J9N
000°5T - - - - - 000°01 $32Jn0s Suloueuly 130 [€10],

000°ST - - = = - 000°01 (In0) ur SIgjsueI]

- - - - - - - 199p JO 90uLNSS! WOLJ SPaad0l]
:5901n0s BulouByl 19410
(TLzsn) €87 (89) (6£9'567) = i (oLsLD) $21M1PUIAX2 JIA0 SINUIAI JO (UDJIP) §590KH
€TL9Y L16°TE 0SL°6 $8T°S9¥ STV LY SS9°6T 890°0% sanyipuadxa [ejo]

- - - 1¥T°S1 - - - 15a191u]

= - - ¥96°Ch = = r Jedidutid
991A19S 199(]
- S6%°S - 9IT'11¢€ - 185°8 - Aepno [ende)

€TL9Y 608°CI - - - - - UOIBAIDAI PUB 2IMN))

= = - = = ~ - syJom d1qng

2 €19°¢€1 - L98°S6 STV Ly PLO'1T 890°0% Kiages a1jgqng

= - 05.°6 - - - - JUSWUIAA0S [BISUSD)
‘saunyrpuadxy
1$1°8C 00T€E 696 609°691 ScrLy L6LTE 861°TT SINUIAQL [B10 ],

- - = £ee’l = - - 13410 pue 152191U]

FLOI = - = - - - SUOIINGIIIUOD PUR SJUBID

= - - = = - 861°CT S3INJI3JI0J pue S ‘S3a9]

= = = = z = - saxe]

LLEYT § 00Tce $§ 696 $  9LT'89I $ STy $  L6LTE $ - $ |eIUSWIAA0SINU]
(SANUIAIY

puny puny uonddolg puny puny ug[J puny punyg s3NARS puny
Laeaqry JudwIdI0j Uy [043u0)) 1IN 0013333044 116 [EMPIA SUOIIILIOD
MY Juonjedynnedg g pasueyuy Kudgowry

Spun,f InudAY [e1adg

600Z “0€ ANNC AAANA YVIA THL d0OA
SANNA TVINANNATAOD JOrvIANON
STONVIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV STINLIANAIXA ‘SAANAATY A0 INAIWHALV.LS ONINIFINOD

SHTVLIOd 40 ALID
OJIXTIN MAN 40 ALV.LS



-up-

panunuo)
T59°19 $ pTeel $ SII'8 §  €T0°LT $ TL906 $  ¥0L7901 $ Le8'ITT $ I2a£ JO pud - aoue[Eq puny
TSIl SLY'S S8 TTr'8l S9I°L9 v8¥°L9 8SL'661 1e24 30 Butuwidaq - dueleq pun
000°0S 6v1°s - 109°8 LOS'€ET 0TT'6€ 6L0°CT $30uE|eq puny Ul SAZUBYD 9N
000°0S 00S°6¥ = - - = - $30In0S Suloueury 19410 [€10],
000°0S 005°6¥ - - - - - (10) I sIaysuRI]
- - - - - - - 199p JO 32UBNSSI WO SPI3V0IJ
:$901n0s Suiduruly 13YIO
= (1s€'1%) - 109°8 LOS'ET 0TT'6¢ 6L0°TT S2IMIPuadXa J9A0 SINUSAJL JO (JIO1JIP) SSAIXEH
2 [€ESTT = LOTVT LS9TEN TETOY £05°89 sainyipuadxa |EJO,
- = - - - - - 1Sa19)u]
- - . - - - - jedisunig
201A195 193(1
= = = 88L°IT - = . £eino [ende)
2] - = = - €T oy - UO[}BaId3] pue 1[N
5 [E€E°STI - - - = - S)I0M 94|qrid
= - - 61vT LS9TEL = - Ayeges o1jqnd
= = - = - - £05°89 JUSWUIIA0S [BISUSD)
:sanjipusdxyq
- 086°€L - 808°C¢€ ¥91°951 SP6L 785°06 SanuaAal [el0],
) * - - - - 079 I3Y}0 pue J5212)u]
- = . 00V°L 005°91 665P1 = SUOHNQLIIU0D PUR SIUBID)
- 8LT'S : 80%°6T 096°'LT TT6°'sT 19% §aIN}13}10} PUE S3UlJ $33]
B - - - - 1£6'8€ 105°68 saxe ],
. § 70889 $ - $ - $ poL TNl $ e $ - $ |eIUaWUISA0S 1))
'SaNUAATY
puny jue.ts yao1g puny puny puny puny we.rsdoaq puny puny
juaurdopAra(g JIsuea |, judwleday ueo| ANUIAIY |e133dg 1A [Bd07] uonBIIINY Xg ], S198po]
Aunwwo)) BI1Y S3|v3I0g uoneIqRyIY JUIWIDIOJUY MBT
24ddD

spuny InudIAY |E1IdS

6007 ‘0€ ANNL AAANA IVIAX THL J0OA
SANA TVINANANITAOD JOrvIANON
SHONVIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV STINLIANAIXA ‘SHANAATT A0 INAIWALV.LS ONINIFINOD

SHTVLIOd 40 ALID
OJIXHIN MIN A0 ALVLS



-yyp -

panunuo)
00€°TOLT $ 8€9°196 $ 8I80I $ 15T § 0S1°00L $ 0£9%6 $ =
986°9TL'1 796°¢H8 9SILI 0TT’e 160001 0956 980°1

(989°57) 9LY°LIIT (8g¢) (69%) 6§ 0L (980°D)
LYO'SET - - - - - LyS
LYOSEl S & . = = LyS

(€€L091) 9LYLIT (8¢¢) (69%) 65 oL (€€9°1)
SPS ESE’] TLL'LLT 86¢ 96 00$°S [EF°F1 90°€T
TLT'ST = = = - (oL) -
SOPLS - - - - 10S°p1 =
080°LbE B - - = - .
¥9L°001 - ) : = - -
1€ES11 - B - - - -
$9L°T9¢ - B W96 - - .
696'+8¢ TLLLLT 86€ - 00S°S = 9b0°'€T
TI8°TTTl 81 S6E 09 TAN] 656°S 10S'¥1 cIPIT
TIS'L = = 3 655°S - =
££9°80¢ 000°9S1 09 = B - =
009°911 - - TANS o - -
18€°28¢ 8T 6€T - - - 10541 -
989°L0¢ < = S = (3 - $ - 8 - $ €I¥IT

spun puny puny puny puny puny 3AIANS puny
INUIAIY [e13dSg JuawdopAadq 122.1)JSUIBIA! ausng JUIWITRUB A 193 s8] ue| g
JolewruoN Almouody Jeulwis) sy UonEAIISUD)) dasudyidwmo))
€30 ASa0uy

Spunj anuasdy [enadg

Ie3A JO pua - aoue[eq punyg

1294 jo Suruuigaq - 2oue[eq puny
sasuejeq punj ul saSueyd 19N
$90IN0S SuIdURU1J JOYIO [BI0],

(3no) ur S19ySuUBL]
199p JO 20uUBNSSI WOIJ SPI3d0I]
:s301nos Suloueuly 19Y10

sarnlpuadxs 1940 SaNUSAI JO (UO1J3P) SSa0XH
saImIpuadxa [e10],

1sa12)u]
jedulig

901A19S 199

Kepno ende)
UO11B3I103] pUE 2I103[N))
syJoMm o1jqnd
Ayoges o1qng
JUSWUIAA0S [BISUID)

:sainypuadxg

SINUIADI [B10],

I2YJO pUE 5319)U]
SUONNQLIJUOD pUR SJUBIL)
SQINJI9}I0§ PUB SAULY ‘S,
saxe]
e1udwuIaA0819u]
1SANUIADY

6007 ‘0€ ANNL AIANT AVIA THL 404
SANNA TVINTANITAOD JOLrVIANNON
STONVIVE NI NI SHONVHD ANV STINLIANAIXT ‘SAANTATY A0 INTINALV.LS ONINIFINOD

SHTVLIOd 40 ALID
OJIXAN MUN 40 HLVLS



- Ly

papnjauo)
LTOI91'T $ o6Tvove $ 86T6II $ Ieaf Jo puo - oouB[eq pun
1€9°181°C 11€°0vE PEEHII Teaf yo BulumBaq - soue[eq punyg
#09°02) 811 7961 saoue[eq puny ui sadueyo 19N
LY0OSET - - $351N0S SUIOURULY JAYI0 [EI0]
LYOSEI > = ur SIaJsuel ],
- - - 1g9p JO S0UBNSSI WOLJ SPAad0ld
:5900n0s SulduBwY 13Y10
(159°551) 811 196 SOIMFIPUAAXd JSAO0 SINUIAII JO (ID1JAP) $$30XY
9657891 TIP'EST 6€9°LY saimipuadxa [elo],
7989 Tiv'ee 188°61 1s191u]
€TTS0E 000°0CT 8SL°LT ledioung
3JIAISS 1997
080°L¥E - = Aepno [ended
¥9L001 - . UOHB31031 PUB 2IMIN0)
[€E°STI - = S}I0M 21|gng
$9L°T9€ - - £a1es o1jgng
696°78€ . = WAWUISA0S [BIOUSD)
:saInjipuadxg
SY6°8TS1 0£5°€ST £09°CS SANUIADI [B10],
860°t1 £00°€ £85°¢ 13y)0 pue 35313)u]
£€980T s - SUOIINGIIJU0D PUE SJURID)
009911 = - SAINJIRJI0] PUB SAUL] *$33]
876°189 LTS 05T 02061 soxe [,
989°L0S $ = $ = 8§ [e1uswuIaA0319)u]
(SINUIASY
spuny Spuog dnUANY s3aafoag
|EIUIWUIIA0Y) Xe ], s9[es fended
Jolewuo) [ejo
spung spuny{
NARS 192 spaaloag |ende)

6002 ‘0€ ANNI CAANA AVAA AHL 04
SANNA TVINANNIAAOD YOLvINNON
SHONVTIVE ANNA NI SHONVHD ANV STANLIANAIXA ‘SHAINAATT A0 INAIWALVLS ONINIFINOD

SHTVLIOd 40 ALDD
OJIXHIN MIN 40 HLVLS



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CORRECTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Correction fees $ 27,500 27,500 § 22,498 § (5,002)
Expenditures:
Current;
Supplies 37,500 40,100 40,068 32
Other financing uses:
Transfers in 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
Transfers out - - - -
Net change in fund balance (2,600) (7,570) 4,970)
Fund balance - beginning of year 10,794 10,794 10,794 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 10,794 8,194 § 3224 § 4,970)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State EMS Grant $ 20,000 32,797 32,797 -
Expenditures:
Current:
Supplies 500 500 240 260
Operating costs 6,000 6,000 20,834 (14,834)
Capital outlay 13,500 26,297 8,581 17,716
Total expenditures 20,000 32,797 29,655 3,142
Other financing uses:
Transfers in - =
Net change in fund balance - 3,142 3,142
Fund balance - beginning of year 4,684 4,684 4,684 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 4,684 4,684 7,826 3,142

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-49.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

E-911 GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State E-911 Inkind Grant 3 79,940 79,940 $ 47,425 (32,515)
Expenditures:
Current:
Purchased property services 48,291 48,291 20,366 27,925
Other operating costs 31,649 31,649 27,059 4,590
Total expenditures 79,940 79,940 47,425 32,515
Net change in fund balance -
Fund balance - beginning of year 3 5 5 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 5 5 % 5 -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-50-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

FIRE PROTECTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:

Intergovernmental:

State Fire Marshall Allotment $ 168,276 $ 168,276 §$ 168,276 § -
Contributions - - - -
Interest income - - 1,333 1,333

Total revenues 168,276 168,276 169,609 1,333
Expenditures:
Current:

Purchased property services 40,875 40,875 - 40,875
Supplies 28,000 28,000 2,068 25,932
Operating costs 10,000 10,000 93,799 (83,799)

Capital outlay 382,594 382,594 311,216 71,378
Debt service:
Principal 42,964 42,964 42,964 -
Interest 12,935 12,935 15,241 (2,306)
Total expenditures 517,368 517,368 465,288 52,080
Other financing sources:
Proceeds from issuance of debt - - - -
Net changes in fund balance (349,092) (349,092) (295,679) 53,413
Fund balance - beginning of year 373,189 373,189 373,189 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 24,097 § 24,097 $ 77,510 § 53,413

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-5]-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

BEAUTIFICATION / LITTER CONTROL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental:

State Beautification Grant A 9,600 9,600 $ 9,692 §$ 92

Expenditures:
Current:

Salaries and wages 4,652 4,904 5,469 (565)

Employee benefits 448 590 639 (49)

Supplies 4,100 3,206 1,225 1,981

Noncapital purchases - - - -

Operating costs 400 900 1,347 447
Total expenditures 9,600 9,600 8,680 920
Net change in fund balances - - 1,012 1,012
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,190 1,190 1,190
Fund balance - end of year $ 1,190 1,190 § 2202 § 1,012
Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:
Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 1,012
Net revenue accruals -
Net expenditure accruals (1,070)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ (58)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-52-




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State Law Enforcement $ 33200 $ 33,200 $ 33200 § -
Protection Grant
Expenditures:
Current:
Noncapital purchases 13,200 13,200 14,108 (908)
Operating cost 10,000 10,000 13,314 (3,314)
Capital outlay 10,000 10,000 5,495 4,505
Total expenditures 33,200 33,200 32,917 283
Net change in fund balances - - 283 283
Fund balance - beginning of year (255) (255) (255) -
Fund balance - end of year $ (255) $ (255) $ 28 § 283

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-53-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LIBRARY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Library Grant $ 3,126 § 3,126 $ 3,146 § 20
Go Bond Issue 26,801 26,801 11,231 (15,570)
Grants and contributions:
E-Rate Grant 3,632 3,632 3,782 150
Contributions 2,000 6,000 10,292 4,292
Total revenues 35,559 39,559 28,451 (11,108)
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay - - - -
Noncapital library acquisitions 60,559 64,559 46,514 18,045
Total expenditures 60,559 64,559 46,514 18,045
Deficit of revenues over (25,000) (25,000) (18,063) 6,937)
expenditures
Other financing uses
Transfers 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Net change in fund balance - - 6,937 6,937
Fund balance - beginning of year (7,162) (7,162) (7,162) -
Fund balance - end of year $ (7,162) $ (7,162) $ (225) $ 6,937

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis b 6,937
Net revenue accruals -

Net expenditure accruals (209)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ 6,728

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-54 -



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LODGERS TAX PROMOTIONAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues:
Taxes:
Lodgers' taxes
Fees, fines and forfeitures
Interest income

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Supplies
Operating costs

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis

Net revenue accruals
Net expenditure accruals

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 84,000 § 84,000 § 89,501 5,501
- - 461 461
4,200 4,200 620 (3,580)
88,200 88,200 90,582 2,382
500 500 - 500
192,470 192,470 63,159 129,311
192,970 192,970 63,159 129,811
(104,770) (104,770) 27,423 132,193
199,758 199,758 199,758 -
$ 94988 § 94988 $§ 227,181 $ 132,193
$ 27,423
(5,344)
$ 22,079

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-55-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

JUVENILE RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:

Cigarette $ 33,000 $ 33,000 $ 38,931 § 5,931
Recreation summer program 6,000 6,000 25,334 19,334
Vending/concession proceeds 900 900 589 (G1D
Grants and contributions:

Hubbard Grant - 10,000 10,000 -

Other donations 11,200 12,019 4,598 (7,421)
Total revenues 51,100 61,919 79,452 17,533
Expenditures:

Current:
Salaries and wages 32,724 32,724 22,321 10,403
Employee benefits 2,591 2,591 1,954 637
Supplies 14,450 25,269 14,665 10,604
Contractual services 1,400 1,400 - 1,400
Other operating costs 1.100 1,100 972 128

Total expenditures 52,265 63,084 39,912 23,172

Net change in fund balance (1,165) (1,165) 39,540 40,705

Fund balance - beginning of year 67,484 67,484 67,484 -

Fund balance - end of year hY 66,319 § 66,319 § 107,024 § 40,705

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 39,540

Net revenue accruals -

Net expenditure accruals (320)

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ 39,220

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-56-




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LOCAL DWI PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental;

State grants § 135,812 § 135,812 § 111,704 § (24,108)
Fees, fines and forfeitures:

Fees and screenings 18,950 18,950 27,960 9,010
D.A.R.E. program 300 300 - (300)
Contributions - 16,100 16,500 400

Total revenues 155,062 171,162 156,164 (14,998)
Expenditures:
Current:
Contractual services 133,150 133,150 109,689 23,461
Travel 4,200 4,200 1,593 2,607
Supplies 9,312 9,312 6,958 2,354
Noncapital purchases - - - -
Operating costs 8,600 24,700 14,117 10,583
Total expenditures 155,262 171,362 132,357 39,005
Net change in fund balance (200) (200) 23,807 24,007
Fund balance - beginning of year 67,165 67,165 67,165 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 66,965 §$ 66,965 $ 90,972 $ 24,007

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 23,807
Net revenue accruals .

Net expenditure accruals (300)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ 23,507

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

LAW ENFORCEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Fees, fines and forfeitures:
Fees 3 5,000 $ 22,900 $ 25408 $ 2,508
Contributions 4,500 4,500 7,400 2,900
Total revenues 9,500 27,400 32,808 5,408
Expenditures:
Current;
Supplies 12,000 12,000 2,419 9,581
Operating costs - - - -
Capital outlay - 21,788 21,788 -
Total expenditures 12,000 33,788 24,207 9,581
Net change in fund balance (2,500) (6,388) 8,601 14,989
Fund balance - beginning of year 18,422 18,422 18,422 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 15,922 § 12,034 §$ 27,023 § 14,989

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

-58-



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CDBG REHABILITATION LOAN REPAYMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ - $ -
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - -
Net change in fund balance - - - -
Fund balance - beginning of year 8,115 8,115 8,115 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 8,115 § 8,115 § 8,115 § =

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

PORTALES AREA TRANSIT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State grants
Fees, fines and forfeitures:
Fees

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Travel
Repairs and maintenance
Supplies
Operating costs

Total expenditures

Deficit of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis

Net revenue accruals
Net expenditure accruals

Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

- 60 -

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

- $ 83,209 § 68,802 § (14,407)

- 4,500 5,178 678
- 87,709 73,980 (13,729)
28,233 74,053 81,554 (7,501)
8,206 17,613 18,180 (567

1,000 1,241 1,101 140

800 1,676 851 825

3,847 17,743 10,107 7,636

6,831 10,979 2,649 8,330

48,917 123,305 114,442 8,863
(48,917) (35,596) (40,462) (4,866)

49,500 49,500 49,500 -
583 13,904 9,038 (4,866)
5,675 5,675 5,675 -
6,258 § 19,579 § 14,713  § (4,866)
) 9,038
(889)
$ 8,149



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Federal grants $ 450,000 $ 500,000 $ - $ (500,000)
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay 500,000 550,000 - 550,000
Total expenditures 500,000 550,000 - 550,000
Deficit of revenues over
expenditures (50,000) (50,000) (50,000)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Net changes in fund balances - - 50,000 50,000
Fund balance - beginning of year 11,652 11,652 11,652 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 11,652 § 11,652 § 61,652 § 50,000

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental
State grants . $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 21,413 § (78,587)
Expenditures:
Current:
Capital outlay 105,000 105,000 23,046 81,954
Deficit of revenues over
expenditures (55,000) (5,000) (1,633) 3,367
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 50,000 5,000 547 (4,453)
Net change in fund balance (5,000) - (1,086) (1,086)
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,086 1,086 1,086 -
Fund balance - end of year $ (3,914) $ 1,086 §$ (1,086)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

ENERGY CONSERVATION LEASE DEBT SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Gross receipts taxes $ 14,501 § 14,501 14,501 $ -
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 13,526 13,526 14,501 (975)
Interest 975 975 (70) 1,045
Total expenditures 14,501 14,501 14,431 70
Excess of revenues over expenditures - - 70 70
Fund balance - beginning of year 9,560 9,560 9,560 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 9,560 $ 9,560 9,630 $ 70

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

RISK MANAGEMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest and other:
Investment income $ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 5559 § 1,559
Reimbursements and refunds 6,000 6,000 - (6,000)
Total revenues 10,000 10,000 5,559 (4,441)
Expenditures:
Current:

Operating costs 10,000 10,000 5,500 4,500
Excess of revenues over expenditures 59 59
Net changes in fund balances 59 59
Fund balance - beginning of year 100,091 100,091 100,091
Fund balance - end of year $ 100,091 § 100,091 § 100,150 $ 59

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CRIMINAL JUSTICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON

BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Fees, fines and forfeitures:
Fees $ 10,800 § 10,800 § 9,173 § (1,627)

Expenditures:

Current:

Operating costs 10,800 10,800 9,642 1,158
Net changes in fund balances - - (469) (469)
Fund balance - beginning of year 3,220 3,220 3,220 -

Fund balance - end of year $ 3,220 § 3,220 $ 2,751 § (469)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

MAIN STREET SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Contributions $ 500 $ 500 $ 60 $ (440)
Expenditures:
Current:
Supplies 250 420 327 93
Operating costs 250 80 71 9
Total expenditures 500 500 398 102
Net changes in fund balances - - (338) (338)
Fund balance - beginning of year 11,156 11,156 11,156 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 11,156 $ 11,156 § 10,818 §$ (338)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON
BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:

Gross receipts $ 223,000 $ 223,000 $ 239,448 § 16,448
Grants and contributions - - 156,000 156,000
Total revenues 223,000 223,000 395,448 172,448
Expenditures:

Operating costs 803,000 803,000 121,772 681,228
Net changes in fund balances (580,000) (580,000) 273,676 853,676
Fund balance - beginning of year 843,962 843,962 843,962 -

Fund balance - end of year $ 263,962 § 263,962 $ 1,117,638 §$ 853,676

Reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP basis:

Net changes in fund balance budgetary basis $ 273,676
Net revenue accruals .

Net expenditure accruals (156,000)
Net changes in fund balance GAAP basis $ 117,676

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Revenues:
Taxes:

Gross receipts
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service:

Principal

Interest and administrative fees
Total operating expenses
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
49,020 § 49,020 $ 49,020 -

4,000 4,000 3,583 (417)
53,020 53,020 52,603 417
27,758 27,758 27,758 -
20,260 20,260 19,881 379
48,018 48,018 47,639 379

5,002 5,002 4,964 (38)

114,334 114,334 114,334 -
119,336 § 119,336 $ 119,298 (38)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS FUND - DEBT SERVICE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Gross receipts $ 250,528 § 250,528 § 250,527 §$ )
Interest 8,000 8,000 1,980 (6,020)
Total revenues 258,528 258,528 252,507 (6,021)
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 220,000 220,000 220,000 -
Interest and administrative fees 33,280 33,280 32,389 891
Total expenditures 253,280 253,280 252,389 891
Excess of revenues over expenditures 5,248 5,248 118 (5,130)
Fund balance - beginning of year 340,311 340,311 340,311 -
Fund balance - end of year $ 345559 § 345,559 § 340,429 § (5,130)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Variance With
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Positive (Negative)
OPERATING REVENUE:
Charges for services $ 4,526,650 $ 4,526,650 § 3,762410 § (764,240)
Late charges 50,000 50,000 87,797 37,797
Rentals 3,600 3,600 2,500 (1,100)
Tapping and reconnect fees - - 78,283 78,283
Other 19,900 19,900 988 (18,912)
Total revenues 4,600,150 4,600,150 3,931,978 (668.172)
OPERATING EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and wages 508,323 508,323 481,503 26,820
Employee benefits 170,075 170,075 198,638 (28,563)
Travel 3,100 3,100 - 3,100
Maintenance 277,800 277,800 627,784 (349,984)
Contracted and purchased services 101,000 219,000 87,758 131,242
Supplies 59,900 59,900 52,739 7,161
Noncapital purchases - - 6,271 6,271)
Operating costs 637,860 637,860 500,863 136,997
Capital outlay 3,957,000 3,957,000 1,826,139 2,130,861
Debt service 797,821 797,821 632,474 165,347
Total operating expenses 6,512,879 6,630,879 4,414,169 2,216,710
Operating income (loss) (1,912,729) (2,030,729) (482.191) 1,548,538
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Investment income 89,000 89,000 4,559 (84,441)
‘Water conservation fees - - 278,701 278,701
Grant proceeds 672,740 790,740 262,200 (528,540)
Loan proceeds 2,000,000 2,000,000 - (2,000,000)
Interest expense - - (157,622) (157,622)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,761,740 2,879,740 387,838 (2,491,902)
Net income before transfers 849,011 849,011 (94,353) (943,364)
Transfers:
Transfets in 792,373 792,373 581,751 (210,622)
Transfers out (2,072,373) (2,072,373) (1,861,751) 210,622
Total operating transfers (1,280,000) (1,280,000) (1,280,000) -
Net income (430,989) (430,989) (1,374,353) (943,364)
Fund balance - beginning of year 11,163,719 11,163,719 11,163,719 -
Fund balance - end of year S 10,732,730 $§ 10,732,730 § 9,789,366 $ (943.364)

Reconciliation of net income for budgetary basis to statements of activities for proprietary funds
Net income after transfers - budgetary basis 3 (1,374,353)
Amounts reported in the statement of activities differ because:

Capital outlay is a budget expenditure but is reported on the proprietary
fund statements of net assets 1,826,139

Budgeted debt service expenditures reduce water and sewer liabilities and
are not reported in proprietary funds statement of activities 632,474

Depreciation is reported in the proprietary funds statement of
activities but is not a budget expenditure item (591.550)

Amortization is reported in the proprietary funds statement of activities

but is not a budget expenditure item (36,302)
Net income after transfers - financial statement basis $ 450,408
e

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Variance With Final

Original Final Budget Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:
Charges for services 1,087,000 $ 1,094,896 $ 1,120,248 25,352
Operating expenditures:
Current
Salaries and wages 276,318 276,318 262,813 13,505
Employee benefits 87,833 87,833 112,298 (24.465)
Travel 450 750 - 750
Maintenance 68,800 83.800 97,508 (13,708)
Contracted and purchased services 509,652 519,952 509,413 10,539
Supplies 125,000 114,700 64,892 49,808
Noncapital purchases - - 3,004 (3.004)
Operating costs 57,947 65,543 6,629 58914
Capital outlay 55,000 55,000 74,314 (19,314)
Debt Service - - 693 (693)
Total operating expenses 1,181,000 1,203,896 1,131,564 72,332
Operating income (loss) (94,000) (109,000) (11,316) (97.684)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income 10,000 10,000 2,643 (7,357)
Environmental gross receipts tax 127.700 127,700 119.760 (7,940)
Grant proceeds - 15,000 12.617 (2,383)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 137,700 152,700 135,020 17,680
Net income before transfers 43,700 43,700 123.704 (80,004)
Transfers:
Transfers out 75,000 75,000 75,000 -
Net income (loss) (31,300) (31,300) 48.704 80,004
Fund balance - beginning of year 38,767 38,767 38,767 -
Fund balance - end of year 7467 § 7467 % 87.471 80,004
Reconciliation of net income for budgetary basis to statements of
activities for proprietary funds
Net income after transfers - budgetary basis $ 48,704
Amounts reported in the statement of activities differ because:
Capital outlay is a budget expenditure but is reported on the
proprietary fund statements of net assets 74,314
Budgeted debt service expenditures reduce water and sewer
liabilities and are not reported in proprietary funds statement of 693
activities
Depreciation is reported in the proprietary funds statement of
activities but is not a budget expenditure item (58,632)
Net income after transfers - financial statement basis $ 65.079

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF PORTALES

AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL ON BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Operating revenues:
Fuel sales
Late charges
Rentals
Other and miscellaneous

Total revenues

Operating expenditures:
Current
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Travel
Maintenance
Contracted and purchased services
Supplies
Noncapital purchases
Operating costs
Capital outlay
Debt service

Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Grant proceeds
Loss on sale of asset

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Net income before transfers

Transfers:
Transfers in

Net income
Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Reconciliation of net income for budgetary basis to statements of

activities for proprietary funds

Net income after transfers - budgetary basis

Amounts reported in the statement of activities differ because:

Capital outlay is a budget expenditure but is reported on the

proprietary fund statements of net assets

Budgeted debt service expenditures reduce water and sewer liabilities
and are not reported in proprietary funds statement of activities

Depreciation is reported in the proprietary funds statement of

activities but is not a budget expenditure item
Net loss after transfers - financial statement basis

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Variance With Final
Original Final Budget Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
108,879 § 108,879 $ 102,271  $ (6,608)
830 830 952 122
33,000 33,000 34,533 1,533
4,180 4,180 666 (3,514)
146.889 146,889 138.422 (8.,467)
34,787 34.787 31,465 3322
5,777 5,777 7,599 (1,822)
1,000 1,000 - 1,000
25,480 644,164 14,693 629,471
- - 510 (510)
15,800 15,800 8,659 7,141
< = 1,486 (1,486)
139,955 139,955 125,251 14,704
- - 371 (377)
222,799 841,483 190,040 651,443
(75,910) (694,594) (51,618) 642,976
15,910 639,594 11,139 (628,455)
15,910 639,594 11,139 (628,455)
(60,000) (55,000) (40,479) 14,521
60.000 60,000 47,952 (12,048)
- 5,000 7,473 2,473
2,325,031 2,325,031 2,325,031 -
2,325,031 § 2,330,031 % 2332504 $ 2473
$ 7473
3717
(164,238)
$ (156,388)
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COMPLIANCE SECTION



] Strickler & Prieto, LLP
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201 E. Main, Suite 500

El Paso, Texas 79901

Tel. (915) 532-2901

Fax (915) 532-0807

WWW.Cpa-sp.com
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Hector H. Balderas, New Mexico State Auditor
Honorable Mayor and

Members of City Council

City of Portales

Portales, New Mexico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, all budgetary comparisons, and the combining and
individual funds presented as supplementary information of the City of Portales (the "City") as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated March 17, 2010. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there
is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that are required to be reported under Governmental Auditing Standards
January 2007 Revision paragraphs 5.14 and 5.16, and Section 12-6-5, NMSA 1978, which are described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as findings 2009-01 and 2006-02.

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and responses. We did not audit the City’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, the City’s management, the
State Auditor, the New Mexico Legislature, the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration,

and applicable state and federal grantors, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

m{%uap

March 17, 2010
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF PORTALES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
2006-2: Late Audit Report

Condition
The audit report for fiscal year 2009 was not submitted by December 1, 2009, causing the City to be out
of compliance with New Mexico State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.9A(1).

Criteria
The New Mexico State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.9A(1) requires audit reports for municipalities to be submitted
by December 1st following the end of the fiscal year.

Effect
The City's financial status and other information is not available to the public and various state agencies in
a timely manner.

Cause
Accounting records were not completed in time to ensure the submission of a timely audit report.

Recommendation
We recommend the City have the fiscal year 2010 and future audits performed with enough time to meet
the New Mexico State Auditor Rule 2.2.2.9A(1) deadline.

Agency Response
The City will proactively work with the Independent Public Accountants to expedite the preparation of

current and future financial audits.
2009-01: Capital Assets

Condition
During our substantive test work over capital assets we noted the following:

» Approximately $1,718,000 in capital assets were incorrectly recorded as repairs and
maintenance expense and reclassified by the auditor to capital asset accounts.

» Approximately $1,688,000 in construction in progress assets were incorrectly recorded
as repairs and maintenance expense and reclassified by the auditor to capital outlay
and capital asset accounts.

* Approximately $583,000 in capital asset additions were not recorded in the capital
asset listing.

» Disposals for approximately $55,000 were not recorded correctly in the capital asset
listing.

« Several of the additions in the capital asset listing did not have the correct line item the
expense was recorded in.

» The City is not reconciling the capital asset listing to the general ledger accounts.
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Criteria

New Mexico State Statutes Section 12-6-10 directs the general services department to promulgate
regulations to state agencies for the accounting and control of capital assets owned by government
agencies and requires agencies to capitalized equipment that cost over $5,000. In addition the City
is required to maintain a current detailed capital asset listing and to record disposal and
acquisitions of assets in the period in which they are disposed or acquired.

Effect

Repairs and maintenance expenditures were overstated by approximately $3,989,000 and capital
assets understated by $3,989,000. Without proper recording of capital asset additions, the City’s
risk of asset misappropriation increases. There is also a potential for the overstatement of assets
that no longer exist and remain on the listing.

Cause
According to City personnel this occurred due to oversight.

Recommendation

We recommend that City personnel identify all disposals and acquisitions as they occur and
properly record them. The City should also consider reconciling capital assets on a monthly basis
from the general ledger accounts to the capital asset listing.

Agency Response
The City will develop procedures to identify additions and disposals as they occur and

properly record. The City is developing procedures to reconcile capital assets to the general
ledger.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

2006-02  Late Audit Report Repeat
2006-07  Data Collection Form Not Timely Filed Resolved
2008-01  Per Diem and Mileage Act Resolved
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CITY OF PORTALES

EXIT CONFERENCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

An exit conference was conducted on March 15, 2010 in a closed meeting of the City Council pursuant to
Section 12-6-5 NMSA, 1978 with the following individuals in attendance:

City of Portales Officials

Sharon King Mayor
Thomas Howell City Manager
Marilyn Rapp City Treasurer
Michael Miller Councilor
Strickler & Prieto, LLP

Brad Voge Manager

Financial Statement Preparation

The City’s independent public accountants prepared the accompanying financial statements; however, the
City is responsible for the financial statement content.
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